
HOLMES COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT' 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

INVESTIGATOR: 
Lt. John Tate 

DATE OF INCIDENT: 
7/12/13 

used excessive force on her and also alleged he sexually assaulted her. The other 

request was from inmate Crystal Harper who wanted to talk about the incident. 
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i 

I viewed a copy of the camera footage inside the officer control room. I observer Sgt. 

Slack escort Ms. Blair into the control room and then place her over a desk. I then 
···"•· ,I 

observed Sgt. Slack holding Ms. Blair atPl'.;~)behind her back, standing in an intetview 
e-~:::{t,~~~~\ ~ 

stance with his knee up against her whge· <i;Y~q: Larry Evins called for Ofc. Meli~sa 
s~.::\ f: ·~:0, \: ,. 1 

Davis to come from the front to the s~iit~ol ig<hp with a pair of cuffs and escort her to 

the front. /:;;';;~::i<~~)~ 
On 7 /18/13 I went to the Holi/~ic'aJi~~"~~flt~.·ifi~~~iew the alleged victim 

.• ~~~1•' '"' \\cc,., .. tl J;i ,!{ ' •''~ ~· /) ·...•. ' ';> ~ ,,, . •. . .·. .. . 1 

<M~U.~~.a.B lg;ir)~~a;;ai~~J;~i.~~~i~f~itnii§(·$)·'.:aii~:(tb~19~t~fu.Jwom:t~pe.g~~~~t~m.eJl~§,, 

' ~~;~~l;i':/~~;~/'1l~~t~~~)::~\,<~~i~}J~~\~~~;;:~;~~i;J1 
I spoke with ~th~' .. ~~i~g~~,,\ricti~'..Nfs;'~laJr"~wh.6 ;gt~{~g1,tQ me t.~~f··~~oW1g::9pm on July 

12th she asked ~j~~'.~~~klta~:sg~·. §1~~k ~b~~t~p~~r~;ihe u~a~.;A~n~61{the door sol 
'~~\~~~l?- 'i~~ ·::1}.~":, :\:.: . ~:::.~<~,.J' I/ l;/i\/~::.~~·:~,;·,· ) 

that she could get sorp~:~ir. Sk~~W:~nt PQ to ~~y 1h'.~!.~gt. Sl,ap~~·would not open tµe 
:?.::?{" ·~ "\O,;'.;:~·\;'•~ ': .:>~-i·~~;'.:i~~l\:';\T:_::':~~::~· i .. ~~,,; ?{,'::~:;:· ," // ''\:,'.~\\~ ! 

flap and he observe~'!fl.!n~[Y han~~lJ:R\·~·r ~.&~1ofsex¥ra,~}Fates. Sgt. Sladk 
• 

1
· f'': 1;·"- 0 .. ,:··::.~::1~4:; %rL\.' 11 ·' :' B ·f,'/0~ I 

stated to the inmate gef~: · iiJ§.ft'tP,e·w .... fiat:llej\~!i~.g<,)i~g {~);confiscate the . 
;(?/;;,'·';: . : .:::··~ ·~~,,,.:1 ~1 1W ·},,,;, \~. , •• c:/\~;~:::;,:.:.,~;.:f i;\\: 

clothes because the,. ;J~¢r~:pq 1sugpP-s~J~.::1"?;~,;~~~!1g!~gl~lot,Bes/uR,1~n the bunks. Ms. 
. /Jff::~ ;\~~-::'.'"" /\ ,,,';~9?'•~ .~"t~!:::;~;f:/;' ~'<~-'!:; ... b ""'~'".~".'''" l ~;··1~~~'-·,j .[0~· t~ 1~:~ . 

Blair told Sgt. Sla [ 
1~,th~il~~;:,wa:s~~t'taking hei?cio~l1€§t0e~¥~~e\IDat is all the clothes 

;:·· ) •. ·:·?/"C ··'" ···"·"':·;;;~;~;·~:.;\\: ·.'1:::.4: I 
that she had. She 'li,::~~n to grab her clothes and Sg{>Sl~4'.J<:tlQ.14 her not to gr~b 

, ~ ~~,/ ~ .. ,·~~:,f:::::tt~~~l L ~ 

the clothes and(~[~;; id anyway. Sgt. Slack got a pair ofhandcu~[~·~~d she had ~er 

clothes and she would not let go of them. Sgt. Slack grabbed her;nd was trying: to 
I 

handcuff her and ordering her to put her arms behind her back however she wou~d 

i 
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not comply and give him her arms. She went on to say that she bent over the table 
1 
I 
I 

to keep him from gaining control of her arms and clothes. She went on to say that 
i 

she still refused to let him and Ofc. Evi ;: ..... ,\in control of her arms. She stated I 
/)~'~i:t';'.:\'1~\ l 

while she was bent over the table Sgt. SlaeR~~was behind her and she could feel his 
.) ~l ~.~ ':<~·~ '. l 

penis up against her. She went on t9·'.~~*;:t~lilki1~ attempted to put handcuffs on h~r 
·< ,.·· ,/ -~\ .. . ~;· ~: : .. <\ '\ ~'. , .: ·, .. ,.. ! 

and pinched her on the hand ( obs~ije·~i;?t\f1S'~};~~g he grabbed her around the ne9k 

and put his knee in the back of 4~/i;~)·~~~l~kJ~~~~~pat her pants were falling doki 

and Sgt. Slack reached and pqJ;t~d'h~F~~i~'.·i~:lb~::~~~: Ms. Blair stated that ~he [I 

~~~;~!("!!~~'~P!li~~-;,;"fi\ffii~~~~~q!:!~:~~~'.f~1::~~~~~!?8:~;sJ~1 
wllef,~:i.ljefkle.an~~f h~~rnigp· agaipst thy~:·d~.~k'.wfili@.X;}(c~;Ev·ip'$~9all~~lJ<lt:Qfc))avis:;tbj··;:c· 

'<tis · (•:,:>; t'.'.; ,,;,'~:.,'.,1, . ,j_::.:":"·;->·. . 't ·:~:.;:;~~, ·;\~\,.:::;~~· \~zt~,.,,;:::.'ti'/'':::·:.•::·;, ;:J,';?•' I 
come to.''t ~Rtr .. oom,./ Ofc ;Jj}avi '·f . \©iri " . front\:\Yitli ·~t:pair,of·~~lffs an~ 

~\. \<;.('.;-;. . f/ :£it;;,, .. ~·.,..,,,_,';;1u' .~:.> '%; ~: l # .1 1-f. ''>: ~:"'°. '{"" ,~, <o;;:>' I 

then escortecf.ii~i't f;",;e~frontflvrs~·'Bl~ir,sta .~{iMiat:while in· tn~'f6~fr6i~~oom sh~ 
'\~,~'. ~r: .. ·: . ,-j~~ir::rE··:,~:.:,,,,{L~:~i'>w·cl {'}.:"' _,·,'..Ztc,:; ,, f~.r,~:;/!.f>;;/ I 

felt Sgt. Slack's pe~~~7;~flag~~nst ~~~again ~ttir~fg D~v:is:~~!~~~~·t Ms. Blair stjted 

to me on several oc·ca:~i<:)µs that.slie~}Va,~.wro~g anQ sll;¢ kno~~',~he over reacted bµt, 
t1'r::'·\: ·!,;~:\·· .··:\::'.,;,;;~i:,~·>,)i ... ; ::;,;:.Y ,;. \'trf\ : 

however she feels Sgt>$fack useq,;~9)J1u2!i:~f9~cci\ J then t9lg:fi~r that I had reviewed 
fb~ !·~. ·1,:?'.,. . /\'.~~,_·>,S:"i~~f :;~{~~~~~~~·~·~.:~.~~1~~".,~->~·~ ,{~·.;: ). :.~,;~ ~t i 

the footage inside tij~;:;cept{gkro~l].1 aridJtJ'66k~.'foi)ne,. that SgtFSlack has his knee 
f/;t :~~ .:::·~'.···<, .. ---:~. ~ :: :''·":·~~"·~~.~:', \\ ''~~·~',; t' ;~~ \}:· :l <:~ '. _···-·<i ~·,tf:(~-~~?~« ~· . . ,}( . .// )} '~~~ 

up against her and '' 'x\};'as hol.qitl}~:tre~r~tTii~: ~~~h~·ti~ Fi~r: ba~k{ ~~~ stated that she 
\. ,t:···:·> ... -* J.L :::;:':·;;r:. ~· ~,,.~~~·: ... ;>,,. ···"~"·>'.'c:~.. ·-·;_ ':3<.~,',-. 'c,t'. . \.:<~: .. J~ /~ -,::'. \~t : 

didn't know what i}:·;·j, '
1

'~~ .. 1~~.•~.~~J~~ff~lt;something:~~4:~~~~~.'~~.~r;:~~:~.~.~ the bruises onJ· 
r, c1 , ; 1· ,, ..... ·""' ···' ,:.··· ..::,;.. "·\ ·J__ ,_., ·~·,.. ,, .1 •• , 

the back of her legi;~g.~~!i~;;siated that she felt like the Brui~~~e~i,11:~ from Sgt.Slack 
) f'"' l"'':i!>~:li!.1' >f:(;dif..,...,. ,~ ..... ,,, .t~t,:'~ ),~ 

- r'":: ;~~ ~::??'.;(},_;><' '~~:•~{~'.'. ·~~'.: .'~:!~\ T 

kneeing her while Y)ring to restrain her. '(\~';.;; 
'z";';:ii4 \*'""::c..'~~l' 
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I then interviewed the following inmates as potential witnesses: Catherine 

Chandler, Crystal Harper, Stacie Ryals, Deziraie Fielding, Victoria Petit, Terri 

Bradley, Victoria Huckaby, Brenda Bertbdlf, and Jamie Sanders. All the witnes& 
. ~~ I 

gave consistent statements with Ms. BJ&f t~~~f unts about the incident. All the l 

inmates stated that Sgt. Slack came 1~~~µe ~9~~,'.~d observed the laundry hanging :on 

the bunks. Sgt. Slack told them to ,it(:;· a, .~th~'.\wall and he stated to them that he 
Ai;~,~;''.:: ,~,0, r / · ,'}) \). I 

was going to take the clothes th~\tiv~re)t~~gI~g,,~fi:~pe bunks. Blair told him that he 

was not taking hers. Sgt. Sl5'~;(~1tl:1fi;,;'.f t~~f •ne~~~pes (pants) on because s~b 
.,µ,,Ml,''!'{/;,;;.<.'rc-'''o'''<'/.'.,::~~.;,,~~:·~,"'';' \,,,{< '~,';,;. " < .~Lo:~, ·~'~";,; ;t;• .·:~~;~ ;>"'..!-> '·~< -·' t;,- •. • :";·,~,.'-."~<\,t>;," ; "', : 

4,a9:~qpJ10~~r,;s}!Qj;tj§~zE:d:Wli¢1\h}~~J1-'·~ent"t~· g~t'he(pants··<?ri .~h:e 0gn}ib~ed~~~r .. ~tQ~g~S.:::. 

&t~~!~~;:~t~:~,~ .. ~~~~~~~t~r~~~.~~~~~~~i?:!'4~t' 
her clotft~~~~~·;th~Y,/got~ipto a .~erbaf~JW~~~·~*t; '~$t·, Sla2~ gqt ·~:l~air~o~.~~ndcuffs 

and told Bl~~~~5~/~1~~!~~!¥~l~~~J~h ~h~~~~~;~!{and I 

refused to let go of ·· ... ¢1Pth~s. SM. Slack O:raobe.a Blaiti'®O::;\M ';:attempting to cuff 
. . r' QI' 0.1 <.' ,,. '·' • . , o· I 

her and she was resi "\by i~~0er ~~~f~J,\f hiP~f keep her clothej 

and arms away from~~;'1qi.~\;,Ofc E¥iP:,~A:,,, ,~1~tit,:{Q~lp Sgt~'1Sla£~ grab her arm while 

Sgt. Slack attempts l~~·cifrl:~er af{di~i~ff:"~lf~~~~·h~r h~rt~·!o~t ~~;the cuffs. Sgt. 
,,i'.i.'t,');{{'i;:"!>''~,~~' 1 ; .·'A~·. ,~1 ('.\)\; '(" . ;oci~;/;;;i~·;;,~: \,<:) ¥i\\~ 

Slack was able to g~p'.conttdl::©fl,3,lair:'$''~i:Jns:atj~:Fs0tti'etiJiie:d~ng the scuffle her 
. ~J$1.(.· ,. /I,,,jf''_,.e;j;~~, ' ··,~<:;\ ,·'·',,,.,·,: ",:> .. ,.,.\( \;'r\ I 

pants fell down a \ittJe'M~;sgpF~Jack. pulled her:p~ts,:oack~µp~·\.~,gt. Slack escorted 
1/!l /,'" ::1:·r=C:Y:';f;i;7:;;:;' '<;~;,~;~\~?;>.. ·. ~~;, \'i1li1 I 

Blair out of the p~~~~~~·~lrito'"the control room. The inffiate~~~~~t~~ that they felt Sgt. 
/.~~~ :~,J <·:~~~": ~":: « ·~·.~ .• ~:.~::/:',~,:' •• ~·:J \.,._'"· I 

Slack used to rri.~g_!'.pforce, however they all stated that if Blair w~~!9 have compl~ed 
'"'"' ~\\2,.,,.··· r 

I 

and not resisted the incident would not have occurred. 
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I spoke with Ofc. Davis who gave a statement to the fact that she was contacted by 

Ofc Evins to come to the control room with a pair of cuffs. Ofc. Davis stated th~t 
,,,,~ I 

when she arrived at the control room sh~,,~"Nffed Blair and escorted her to the fro~t. 

. l~:tf·~~:, I 

I spoke with Sgt. Slack and he state¢'.tqat (Of~;;:~~vins called him and stated that the 
1fi,f Jr::./\\:~,',•\ I 

females wanted to talk to him abo~fth,,l' ~an'tf~p\being opened so that they could 
,y;f,~'·';:';' }1 h'\/Z;(\'~'- ' I 

get some air .. Sgt. Slack went o~Jb.~ii'. ~ ~,~~\ie~'l,to the back and spoke to the 
151 ~f l'. -<., :'1"'L:t:'~~,, \,,'i:\ I 

females and told them that thyf)ll:tps)1§ldit~ 2~,9Jbsed::p,er Sgt. Weeks and everybody 
;··"'~.:::::~"'/'.'·····.·'. ,J''" ·~;;_~·.,\ :·z.:(;.\·· l·'_,_:.i_,.·.,\ . ''<.'"'·~:-.:::·--~. J 

else,,flapsar~~:c1oge(J~'.:Wiji1~:·talkihg-t~ th~nfhe e.h~~fv;e<l·· tQ~:~fg:~iil,tcl~thes~h~ging 

..•.. ot?~~~~n~~~;t'.~4t~i~:i;~~~~e{!f ;~~~t:t~~\J~re,~~~~~~-~~,;p:F!J 

.. ·them hangt~g~t~er~:i He--~pld BJfl:1r to:.~(();:~,~t'h~.r pfri,l\~ on he9aµs~. ~he. ;w~s;~if'her 
• 

11

'\~;~~;..·,~~::}\~,\ ~t: ·:,~~ d: . _r.1:J:~:·::·:. ·.···.-; ... ~:'..:~."d'.:I~':~~--.~~~;.,~'-~-_.; .. _" j·/t 1 :</\;\ .:._ . •"'v.:·,:·~·. _.-<_i ~<;::{/'· . 
. . boxer shorts afl.:~·t.~Jl~ :~~lked f!>\C~f'J?Jie~~q~ ·#i~·'~~t,:·,~er p~nt~:b~· .~B~'>grabbed her 

, .,,~:::::·::· .'.~~ '":~;!"'·'> "~(~' 5 I~ r'./~.-': :... .,~ ... ,.:'.~ ',"'. ~.: ... :·~:' ' .. :. l_'~~ .:'~:;;;';:\_{ , 1 ~: \ ,,_.·,' .'.,:.r.s:2;: ,~·,/~;f ."'. i,:·;.: ~·,'.':;'.'. .:' ~ .<'; g,:.: ~--:,:/·,_ 

clothes that was na~g;j;~? .ari4!told r:S.gt. Slack~that'.~;~~w~s'P.~tJ1~~!gg,~to take her 
~~!'.j~~{/.\ . ~ii ';':\'-":,, '•~\\ . '(" < !': '.~: .. :·)"/:~-'' 

clothes and she walk<t~l(Rack 0;x~~p!<1~1:1i~; Sgtf; ~Jap~.~hen t~Tq;;,per to release her
1 

}~ f!.'f '{,,, \' r,:;;,:·\:,~>.1 \,:;,, ,;.:;:.:)_' ! ?;~::~:~>~-~/ f' .. J &:·.~~;.;) )> ~ ~:\ ; 

clothes she was hold;fi.1-g~al)..d she:t,¢m$~.Q.;1~Sgt.;'sta~lfthen tea¢l1~d and tried to take 
1;J-:. ~ ·t,.. .,,;z:·.:1 «'Jil·~ ,~,;·.,~:-,:;:,.·::>: . .:") :1 '·~~u I 

the clothes from heti~4~s~~1~i:i4:~ar;;~~
1 

,' ·~m~ie}tnrip:~:tp ke~~ the clothes from 
Hr >::· , ~.:~ ~:;,~· i:: · ''~: ~: .. ·;:: .. ;:';;,; h11<:!~. \ . ,, .. :'.'? ·:::;-.::~~~.,,.~;" f si ~i 

him. He then calle~for:·Q.f~U~vin,·§;<tq,9, aj~~~n'(i!~]:lelp~:;bil?J,'tcy 0 i·lfi cuff her. They 
i~~ t"_ ".'.. }~',, /::" .. ii :':o:,<. , ~~"~:_'.s:.9Y~ "'·'~":~~,~~._-., .. :··" .,;;·,t-.. ·, ·~,;;. \ :·."'. ".;~ 

were able to get o/4~;ha~~,eti' . ., .,'J5~i~~meho~~~~~~,W~~0:ab~~~:t:· : p out of the cu.ffs 
",:·:' If:'· .i··;·~~.'·:;~>;~;'/;;:f:;/ '\";,~~::· ,.. :-·"';:).;. ·<\~·,. Ar.~; i 

and they fell to th
1

: ,,q9r~:csgt. Slack then escorted her oritq(th¢1),od to the control 
r:~·;~ ,,, :~~ -~~~~k •• >- ,,. ''-:(2~~~~:> '.':.1.h' 

room where helJf~l,g.her down against a desk until Ofc. Davis cojit9;;·~rrive with 
V.1-r~:.>'i' -~,~':~::6::.>' 

another set of cuffs. Sgt. Slack stated that he did not see inmate Blair's pants 

falling down and he did not reach and pull inmate Blair's pants up for her. 
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i 

On 7/25/13 I met with Ofc. Evills at the Sheriffs Office and obtained a statemedt 

from him about the incident. Ofc. Evins stated that when he come on shift he wlnt 
. l·:··.~·" I 

around closing the bean flaps on the pod~ like Lt. Lee and Sgt. Weeks told him tp. 
} 1t5L,·?:;-:_ ; 

While closing the flaps inmate Blair st~t~d.''t\\!i!t she couldn't breathe and wanted I 
./·s~: ii z,:t ! 

him to leave the flap open. Ofc. Ev~P,~1i~l~ fi~r4hat he could not do that and inm:ate 
'.!:f/~l y; /t· ::~~·,,~.:::};\ '·<~\\\ ; 

Blair asked to speak with Sgt. Sla~~t H~ went.61',to say that Sgt. Slack came baek 
/'.;f,'·}./0t, ~ './ ··~.:[,l··j:·~\ 

to the female pod and talk to inqff1t~:·:B~~j~'"~np, wpi,,~,talking to her he observed 
Ill~ ',!' / t ·:i;r,"'~{ :,,,-... .~'.' ~· t'"" 

/v/ g/;}:. ~& .--rC; .:,~~:: <t~~",.SI;i~:l.:.~\1:·- ·'-·'"'.' •• ~~\~t,, 

laundry hanging on their ?.~~~ga~~.~~gip~tg:~t~~~~~e.~~~~:\~?out the regulations of 
.. A"»'fl,'!<"'.W'W':~.,;,.""'~~::...-= .. , ... ,,.~"'J . , '°i':l \\,"'..-, ··--::-.-!) , f~"J1 4''<,j,;;: J:· .. "~, >1 II!.'::!:.~ ~,<" -;.-:~""~·!'...'._:.r:.::::;i;-. ..,,~ . . I 

t~tf:~.~jl!;~,:~;gt;~~,I,~9~~tb:en3<:>1~-tlt~.~Jo·:~et;a~~1~si"t!},~.J~aJ!'·~~that:rr~~~~.~;:~<?J!Jg;Spc~t~. 
\~i;. if{~~: ···" "-~::'J:·:i~7·~:tf~-..· .. !··~<~·JPt'i/\J".:~-,/ • .& '<i\~~~",.'1':;-.. '\. i~~-"") \% , ~fit,f;i ,.[~~"'"\ . ·;J{·.< ,::<;~~})· \~{·:·~"::;.'~~S'. ·!:\:,.~ '"·~~-;;c~;;_·:(:~. . .:;:€\:Ji ::U~l 

· · · c611~~:l,rre dothess!b~rth~y·'~re· nq~ ~:s.~IiF~@se::i8{~a;y,@; and~11~t,,~h~piJ11~1~~'fr :pro}J,~fty:§· 
·:;i,':'l>w,:y•;i!t<·2 '">)' '< .. ') ·:,,;P···3 , .• ··:,\./!;, \ : .. :'"~ ':. ·.; ,'.'' \cf:?· J':,;•,.:, ·: •. ,:., ... ,!!$:?".,:/ . 

. Ofc. E~U1~:.:fji1t4e,r :sfatea:.il1at Iiµri~te{)i3'frt~t\~'9~¢Fqffthe wa1Ca11~hwel'.lr:~~~r,~to her 
""ir:;:<:; .. : ''ii/ ·.·. .. ' .~.~. ,., . . J· :;:•·'" .-.· ,, · : ; / ."';'. · .... u· ·'"'' .J· .. ;<> 

bunk and gr1b~~!~;~;~~ef{~~:t~l~:~~:J'i~~~·~,!f~e ~~E;~f~J)g'her clo,es. 
Sgt Slack then fol~:JI;llhate· ~lair !9 get back, 6ntp~ w~U artGb~b~:;vefused to do so. 

~\">>~1 \\ 'f:~1 :',';,:~"~. 4.• ~. ~: .. :'}f ::,;· :,-~;:;·Y:~:.:f!' 

Sgt. Slack then went ·~x.~,r to i:µm~te·B,J~jr and1 att~fp.pt~d to !·ak,:~ the clothes from her 
·tV f ;,~ ~(;. :,~\·~~·;"'·'t .. . ,'!, .. • - .. :·: -~· :~.·~~-'.t~:·· '.r"·:r '·. ~ ,?/tf' .< \,;·~·-~.~~ 

and she resisted himfl;':S~t~·(:~lack~t~~~:~~!;~;~9·~~!,.~f her,~fl?i.~d was trying to 1uff 
t'.-'~"' ~'. ~ ~, . """·· ·-.,., "·•/ .... -::(;0f1~'\"'.h,._,,,..: ~· D _ _, --"· ~:r !·,·\, 

her and she started £fghtingwit~'l:ii¢:a.t}lT:wtjJil4 ilQt comply\ with his orders by I 

/~A.1~f.i."/.:::,jw;; .,,._ ~.i/ ff I~~:~:, \:) ~~;/:··?~s;~:·,~/(~f\'f\ 
cuffing up. Ofc. E · ·tl~·1aq,d,eQ\r~ J::l1e¥;~~~i~~~:rs~~ot,isyp·l~y 1;~gt. Slack to come 

, j:\/;! ! );~,'.flft;;:~ ' ,:<>::;~.~jY' 'i;:_<c;':::::><t" <:,;;, , J, \>•.:;'.; :;\ ''.~¥~ i 

help him to get her·, . ~eg:,afl'gj}1~~stafted talking»f(;)~;t~ateq~Jai~itcying to get herjto 

quit resisting and p:;
1

ed~(Ji:~f~~~ "fuck you'. Ofc. ~~:f~§~;~~a.f1~~\o say that Sgt) 
' ' ;.~i.>" "'.:,~;~:.· )l,}L. I 

Slack was able it<tgam control on inmate Blair and escort her tO'th~:'.~ontrol room 

where Ofc. Dav~;~ame and cuffed her and escorted her to the fr~~~>·for lock doJn. 
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t 
' I 

. I 
After interviewing everyone involved including the witness( s) and based upon the 

statements given it is in my opinion that Sgt. Slack gave inmate Blair several veibal 
,;~;~:;~~ I 

commands in which she ignored and refijs~<a to comply causing Sgt. Slack to haye 
t"/~s~~z, i 

to use miniinum amount of force necesi~\{o gain control of inmate Blair and the 
,,y, f ~ y~ ;,:~~: ~ 

situation. Inmate Blair resisted Sgt.1,~i~~~Vi~;$~rforming his d~ties by refusing tp 

cuff up. It is also in my opinion tl]:~li.~~t~~aY~tr.violated F.S. 843.02 resisting· 

without violence. The allegatio111{;thatf~~f¢ , " alleging are unfounded 
1Y·:~;-./~~: , .:~· '.:'L-~0::.~-i~hJ:: .... ~.~t':-" 

the situation could have been 1nr,evetj.t~d p~ ,..,.,.,. ... ..,..,,11'1'\ 

f c~=~~;pf;:/l/;~-;c·· . ~.· i.ii 

···,~~ii~~/ 
·~,~'~!;~~l,:}\ '\ 

,, ..... 
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HOLMES COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Date: January 25, 2013 

To: Sheriff Tim Brown 

From: Lt. Michael Raley 

,·. 

. '· ~- . : . 

~, ,· 
':, ' 

Reference: Inquiry into allegatipn~ of. Oobec.oming conduct 
I 

I 

On January 22, 2013, Sheriff Tim Brown.had received an anonymous lett~r 
alleging improper conduct by S~rgeant Tyler Harrison during a Holmes County 
School Board meeting·onJanuary 15,·2013~ .The letter alleges that Sergeant 
Hanison;w_qsott-dµty we:ai-i11g divilicin clothing wearing~hls badge and, . . '. 
department weqpon 'disrupted ·the.schdpl board meeting and bccpsted a:· 
female in}lie_ par~ing 1.?t. _ · . ,, '--;/~_:,~.::~ "=,.:\::;: .. · · ;"'. : . • 0

_ • • . :.. : • -

At your reqvest, lhave c;:ondwcte:o-.~'qr\'iriquiry ihto' the allegations. I have 
spoken with.Sergeant Harrison~re-gc1rdlng~fhe 'ci'llegptions .. Sergeant Harrison was 
indeed present at the schoo(-po_argJhE?eting_on_th.at dat~; along with Sergeant 
Adrienne Odum (Sch9ol Re~ource Officer) and S~rgeant Daniel Morris. 1 

Sergeant Harrison ·was in plain dothes, wearing his qepartment weapon and i 
badge, which is the dress code-for·m-embers offhe Cn'min'al Investigative ! 
Division of the Holme~ County Sheriff's Offic~. Sergeant Harrison decided to ; 

. . , . . - I 

attend the school t;:>c),ard meetin·g. at. his·own choice to observe the meeting ahd 
assist Sergeant Odu~ and Morris if_needed~· The_-sch.ool b9ard meeting on : 
January 15, 2013 began af6:00 RM, which is qfter S~rgear)t Harrison's normal : 
hours; however as h~ is sut;>ject_ta' being or\-call, it,i~ not un~ommon for member 
of the Criminal Investigative Division to attend fuhctiqns after business hours ! 
wearing their depclitrn$nt weapon and badge. -. ' 

Sergeant Harrison denied making any inappropriate comments or 
disrupting the meeting. Sergeant Harrison did state that after.the meeting he : 
did·engage in a conversation with Wade Kriser and his cousin Megan Kriser. ; 
Sergeant Harrison stated that while he and the Kriser' s did disagree over the : 
conversation, he did not raise his voice, make any rude or unprofessional I 
comments or conduct himself in an unprofessional manner. Sergeant Harrison 1 

stated that the disagreement was over the controversy caused by the school 
board's decision to transfer Zeb Brown from principal of Bethlehem School and 
other family issues. Sergeant Harrison also did not know who would have written 
the letter. 

1 



I then spoke with Sergeant Daniel Morris regarding the allegations. 
According to Sergeant Morris, Sergeant Harrison stood by him throughout the 
meeting. Sergeant Morris specifically stated that Sergeant Harrison did not 
cause any disruption in the meeting and never raised his voice to any of the ' 
attendees. Sergeant Morris did disclose that while Sergeant Harrison was having 
a discussion with Wade Kriser, Megan Kriser also joined in the discussion and 1 

began raising her voice. Sergeant Morris did disclose that he asked Mrs. Kriserlto 
lower her voice. Sergeant Morris denied Sergeant Harrison raised his voice or 
accosted_ Mrs. Kriser. 

I then spoke with Sergeant Adrienne Odum regarding the allegations. ! 
·,' ) 

According to Sergeant Odum, she had been contacted by Holmes County , 
School Superintendent Eddie Dixon. -Sup~rintendent Dixon requested Sergea~t 
Odum have another officer attend the school board meeting due to the recent 
controversy over the transfer of Zeb BrownJrom his position as principal of J 

Bethlehem School. Sergeant· Odum contacted Sergeant Daniel Morris, who v{as 
on duty that day. Sergeant Harrison stood-next to Sergeant Morris during the I 
meeting and in the proXimity of Sergeant ·odum. Sergeant Harrison did not say 
or do anything that would have b~ert--disr:uptive to the meeting. Sergeant ! 

Harrison did not seem at all disgruntled or agitated_; Sergeant Odum did 
discl9se-tnat after the meeting _while- Sergeant Harrison was engaged in :a< -
conversatlqr'l-with}N ode Kriser, Megg_riJ~dser. joined in the co.nv~rsation and 
began (aisingher vo_ice. -serge9nfQ.du[f;!·,,tj~nied SEirgeant Harrisdn raised his' 
voice or accosted Mrs. Kriser. '. __ ~ c _' • -~: .:;:_~::~>'·\ '}'·. _ . .. -~-: :· ·- . --

Also on January 23, 20,1-3/l sppke with Pastor Eddie Eaton. Pastor Eaton 
had been standing next tq ~ergednt--Mor.fis a.~~ in:'very close proXimity of j 

Sergeant Harrison during the scho_ol boa~a m~'etiri'g;· Pastor Eaton stated that ;he 
never heard Sergeant HarrisQl!_mdke_any_comrn~nts during the meeting, nor do 
anything that would be consid~red dfsrDplive or unprofessional. Pastor Eaton: 
stated that he had left after the meeting._,. -

On January 24,' 2013;_1 spqke with Superintendent Eddie Dixon. _ 
Superintendent Dixon. AccorqjQg to S_u·p-erintendent Dixon, he did not observe 
Sergeant Harrison .say or do anything disruptive or inappropriate. : 
Superintendent Dixon als·o advised· that the meetings are audio recorded anc;f 
could be made ayailable:if.needed. Superintendent_ Dixon .. did not observe 
Sergeant Harrison after the meeting or outside of the-building. 

On Januar'Y'25, 2013, I spoke with Wade Kriser on the feiephone. Mr. Kriser 
stated that he and-his wife Megan had a disagreement with-Sergeant Harrison 
after the meeting, but did not believe that Sergeant Harrison had committed• 
any violations of law or policy or caused any disruptions. Mr. Kriser denied that 
Sergeant Harrison had accosted or prevented him or Mrs. Kriser from leaving. 
Mr. Kriser stated that he and Mrs. Kriser have no ill will or hard feelings toward i 
Sergeant Harrison and they are working to resolve any family problems. I 

Based on my interviews with Sergeants Odum and Morris, Superintendent 
i j 

Dixon, Pastor Eaton and Mr. arid Mrs. Kriser, the allegations made in the letter, 
are without merit. I have also bot found any violations of the Holmes County ! 

2 



Sheriff's Office Standard Operation Procedure were violated by Sergeant 
Harrison. 

In an effort to prevent any future allegations, the controversy over the 
Holmes County School Board transfer of Zeb Brown as principal and the pef1ding 
litigation by Sergeant Harrison's mother against the Holmes County School Boa~d 
over actions taken by Zeb Browl'.l, Sergeant Harrison has been advised not to 1 

attend any school board meetings, either on or off duty and to avoid any 
unnecessary controversy involving the school board's actions and his family's 
pending lawsuit. 

Lt. Michael Raley 
Criminal Investigative Division . 

- ~. ,- - .- . 
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COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

TIM BROWN 
I 

SHER~FF 

January 19, 2016 

To: Lisa Wells 

On January 17th, 2016 you were arrested by the Holmes County Sheriff's Office for the charge of 13attery 
Domestic Violence. Based on your arrest, this is a violation of Holmes County Sheriff's Office Standard 
Operating Procedures 1.4.5 (Conformance to Laws). 

As of this writing, January 19, 2016 you are being separated from your position as an Auxiliary . 
Correctional Officer with the Holmes County Sheriff's Office and you will return all property belonging to 
the Holmes County Sheriff's Office in a timely fashion. j 

Also you may provide a written response to this decision. If you choose to do so it will be placed in y:our 
personnel file. 

Regretfully, 

Sheriff Tim Brown 

211 N. Oklahoma 
Bonifay , FL 32425 

I 
Phone:! 850-547-4421 

Fax:: 850-547-2290 



HOLMES · .. COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

TIM BROWN 
·SHERIFF 

LETTER OF REPRIMAND 

Date:. . October 18, 2016 

To: Sergeant Thomas Pate 

Frorn: ·· Captain MichaelRaley 
j 

Subject: · Cond_uct Unbecoming i 
I 

On Tuesday, October 18, 2016 Sheriff Tim Brown received a complaint from Jason French regarding a harassing text message 
. I 

he had rec.eived. On .the ~ven'.ng of Sunday, OC:t~ber:9, ~016, Mr. F_renc~, a can_didatefor H~lmes County Sheri~, received a 
lengthy text message calling him among other things a har and end mg with "Enjoy the surprise you'll see tqmorirow". The 

· text was received frc:im . The next week Mr. French made a complaint regarding the text message with the Bonifay . .. , .. I .. 

. Police Departmerit. The investigation by the Bonifay Police Department revealed the number came from a pho;ne app cci.lled 
"Pinger".· "Pinger" records indicate the associated phone number from the account is : Further ir:ivestigation 
by the Bonifay Police Department revealed the  number was under your account. Also on Tuesday, October 18, 
2016 you admitted to Sheriff Brown and myself that you had sent the text message . 

. Based on thisactioh;You have violated Holmes County Sheriffs Office Standard Operating Procedure 1.4.2.(Unbecoming 
Conduct). "Personnel shall conductthemselves at all times, both on and offduty, in such a manner as to refledt most · 
favorable\on the department. Conduct unbecoming Sheriffs personnel shall include that whfc:h tends to bring the 
Department into disrepute or reflects discredit upon the person as a member of the Department or that, which\ tends to 
impair the operation or efficiency of the Department or personnel. Employees shall at all times conduct themselves in such a 
manner as to reflect a favorable image on thems~lves'and the Holmes County Sheriffs Office." 

Sergeant Pate, you should always maintain a high level of professionalism in your job and off duty actions. Bec'ause. ofthe 
way you concealed your identity sending-the message and the content of the message; you have sullied t~e image of the 

· Sheriffarid the Sheriffs Office .. Because .of the seriousness ofthis incident, you are hereby receiving this letter ~freprim~nd 
.·to be placed in your personnel file. I . 

211 N. Oklahoma Street 
Bonifay, FL·32425 

Phone: 850-547-4421 . ' . . 
Fax: 850-547-2290 

I 
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HOLMES COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Date: February 12, 2016 

To: Sheriff Tim Brown 

From: Capt. Michael Raley i'.l:',\, rr < 
, 'ri, , 

: t·\.;' 

Reference: Inquiry into allegatioQs;~f~e "' , ~~ive force/false report 
, __ if:.;r~t?jf~'~ :~ 

, On January 27, 2016 I wqsJ<iohtdb :~,Jill Simpson from the Criminal 
Justice Standards and Training4~g:of!)rfiiis~! ,Lt. fy~s.-Simpson advised they had 

.; '''."':."-~·-·_.,.<'<·~/.~· :A:·::;;>":,W.7'"""·'"'·ifti{t:'.-->~t-'.\. I 

received a complaint onD~m,,~ty"~(?s'<;iQ S,lgff(1tt~1c9m Michael Johnson and J 

requested on ,iD,~~,!t~~;tiqp;1ifft~~f!T~t~Lt~g~li(;!:rf~+I~~gf~t~!~,~J;~9X\!"ixYas ordered by 
you(Sl~.edff~'FirrtB'f;'- ;«· w Jto'f;}'@uer·· 'in < • < 'tb4Ele allegc.r" ···-·· < I 

),~~~~)~~'":; t"'{'. < - ';ii~0~1;)}»;t' '~f) \t,, :i~)~·i:''z j·,;1~'?; 
· I re~Ji~ 3t~~:'~ll~9otio?f' / :1t£n li~; .. -.'~0.,!z~·/t: . ccording 

to Mr. Johd~Q -~r;'i~ty4~taff9rg_'Cp, ·;.~.F~porp<;:Jr\!J~i-~ptm;)_ > rooper Roger 
Pyle was goiri · .. , -~~~tr€'s·t{.MLN~11[1~g: i::1"'./· "' ,:;:8f~~nrn:~1r: ·. ~ >1

'en involved in.: 
Mr. Johnson alsd~:q!l '._ '0~f0ut~2SlefferJ! ~11l~ke'ti,hitr)J:il:t ?'"'. cious. 

'" Jv<1~. ~' ~:~ z. :~1- ,. ll }'\'., . . .... ~;; I 
On Feb_ruary l ~ -~ cit~'"qW:'~r~~!r1:1,at~;~y~J}; .,,. · M .~: ·+;;t.::ke with .Trooper Ro~er 

Pyle. According to T er P · ' ~:+fl · · · L'.· 1spat,gH~EpQ to a disabled vehicle. 
· ·. --:;i•1 •··. ·"\Yo·· :.•' 4 'r ':' I 

His investigation rev~,;;; ttdJi:t?e f., ..• J~l~.·;,l,.;;,, :fk a1~~~f~·;;,post up the road, hactl 
left the scene and t>.~~1<JJ~!Je>gJ~pl:?l~d.'~~'" ........ · s~9t .ivz '" · i ··~ of a subject walking 

I Us H 90 I M·•···d·'"'""·"t .'% ••. <Z • r1-;,'&Ji;;.·•, ·····; I d t t I a ong wy , . · {I,, ·~p · .~r f:'2:~:::,10j"~O~~£ e ma e con ac 
1 

with Mr. Johnson a i r:~J ;1 .; ,;,. ~Q::l:- d'fiih:l~§~¥fQ·~sq'. .6 • , , ..• ger in the vehicle. ~ 
Trooper Pyle also st· >t:~ c,··. ~JH·§~h was nC>t·Erf:]~~i~~1~~Ws:~f~when he was talking. 
Deputy Stafford a_~; ~$~pi.· cene at some point .. 'l'~~~@'~{"~:~~e stated Mr. 
Johnson began ,:, : @Ystatements about converting t~Jst~rn and began 
stepping into th~;f£g6ci even as both were telling him to std:~Jut of the road 
because of traffic. , Trooper Pyle stated Deputy Stafford grabbed Mr. Johns·on 
because he would not get out of the road and Mr. Johnson began struggling. · 
Trooper Pyle stated he assisted Deputy Stafford in restraining Mr. Johnson and 
placing him on the ground and into handcuffs. Trooper Pyle stated Deputy 
Stafford used the least amount of force necessary to place Mr. Johnson into 
custody ahd Deputy Stafford probably saved Mr. Johnsons life as he was almost 
struck by a passing vehicle. I asked Trooper Pyle if he had any video of the 
incident. Trooper Pyle advised i~ the footage would have been evidence of a 
criminal case it· would have beeh downloaded otherwise the video deletes after 

i 
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30 days. I asked Trooper Pyle if he had made any other indications of the 
incident other than the crash report. Trooper Pyle advised he did not use any 
force other than assisting Deputy Stafford restrain Mr. Johnson. Trooper Pyle · 
stated while he could not prove Mr. Johnson was driving the vehicle, Mr. 
Johnson admitted to being an occupant in the vehicle and Mr. Johnson did riot 
act like he was in his right mind ·as if he was under influence of something. 

On February 8, 2016 I obtained a sworn taped statement from Deputy 
Jason Stafford. According to Deputy Stafford he went to assist Trooper Pyle 
when Trooper Pyle was out with Mr. JgJ~~son. When he arrived Mr. Johnson 
appeared that he was not in his right"i:nlnd. Because of Mr. Johnson's erratic 

· behavior, Deputy Stafford was initiall~ifu'6'\ng to Baker Act Mr. Johnson. Mr. 
Johnson began backing into the ro<''. J!i~~puty Stafford told him not to get in 
the road but Mr. Johnson continu · Oe8Ft0Jy Stafford grabbed Mr. Johnson to 
get him out of the road, When h~ '.'9'h~~''§\_~ching away trying to get away.· 
Deputy Stafford and Trooper P J hlf r;$i·tl8en:::¢ible to get Mr. Johnson on the · 

~~-;.- ·~/)\·> ... \;;1[" '<;}_,-- ::::__-,'<'<... ' 

ground and place him in hon· ;f~.1~B.~cgvs~\&\r. Johnson had resisted and was 
on state ~robation he.9ecid

51
., ,j:ftg ;8Jn+Mt~)rrr'~1t\hresisti_ng an officer without 

violence: Deput S · §:>.~~~d&:~i~a~~h'.'-···· Mf;;z~,on"'.,:• .. :9fo191~Jfying any 
· -- - ··).¢' • .. f,/p.\1 ·. w}fe:r,:;;,,-~- ,,•{ .. ~""'~· - _:,,f/. ;.-. •''.'o,·~';<;=i, . .;<>0,;:"'X• ; ... ,. 1 

doccr) ts~;. ' ' ' ' "Jfor:ch tate~a th .. • ;""'iCle.nt nol"r@c©tae~::rc:> . 'iSlkl:Dod 

~il~ha ~~~1~~~,~t\~f~~:~re, :'~:'"~%if'~~~:,~ 
and remin'tieo'.l · '1'5toutw goli ·; ·m:GAte.o~L1r-· •ttAebC!tte ''drged. 

'»;,~~~ x_A~ "i~ • __ ._, _ / .- ,., 'L<\:7t ~~S'.\:·· _. _ .. ,·_;~---··· / jf·· 

I then re~le e AJ. ?filsoff•'2sY.jai1}.f1 e}:. ~::Jdh4'.~8 ·\··not have any 
"z;,li, ' Xi:• ' ,., ' ., 'A !! ' . . '··•·1 ... t ' 

marks or redness, 6r~·. " 1~ib~ of @~ing ch~keG\I:JJn~onsct~.:;, · isible in his booking 
photo. Mr. Johnson-q11~9.didk1p ';"' ,QEt a~J~J~~.~lin I,:,,;·,~1ooking file, medical'!: file 
or file any grievance I'~ 5fugardiff; · .. · '''" eff<:irce ¢ lse arrest. 

-(\... . ·/J,.~'.:' , ~ 
.' t<~-~-,.. . ·!"'-"'}":,,..~><, ~ ,,. .. :' .':-1 

, . ·. ~;,H~ ·"""-~tr,, . , , :.';;,,c~r , iplence) states 
Whoever shall resist11~, p_f't ;·~~§$~~2i'0Y.S?" :~':"·J· .·,fired ins. 943.1Of1), 1(2), 
(3), (6), (7), (8), or ( .. ' J?t~;flori~.Q·©. 1~~t@Q,O(l Offender Review or 
any administrative ··~. . is·hr empl~~(i{ .. ,,"~\~~·aqi~tnission; county ; 
probation officer; l'i\•,;; ,~~FE£~> _ probation supervis .· ~~~~~Q.~f I or repre~entative 
of the Departmeql~ · .'OW Enforcement; or other persoris!~gqlly authorized to, 
execute procest~;g~ ·. e exec_ution of l~gal process or in th~{J:~~ful executi?n 9f 
any legal duty, without offering or doing violence to the person of the officer; 
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, punish9ble as provided iJ s. 
775.082 ors. 775.083. 

i 

Based on Trooper Pyle's and Deputy Stafford's statements, because of Mr. 
Johnson's behavior, Deputy Stafford believed without intervention, Mr. 
Johnson's behavior may cause him to harm himself. Mr. Johnson did violate 
Florida Statute 843.01 by atten;ipting to run and snatching and pulling his arms 

i 
! 
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away and Deputy Stafford was within the policy of the Holmes County Sheriff's 
Office and Florida Statute in placing Mr. Johnson into custody. 

Based on the statements of Deputy Stafford and Trooper Pyle and the 
lack of any signs of injury or any other evidence of excessive force these , 
allegations are unfounded and are not supported by any of the allegations of 
Mr. Johnson. 

Respectfully 
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HOLMES COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

To: Sheriff Tim Brown 

· Internal Investigation Case Number: J~}16~05 
' . . . ·. . p~;;~*j~~·, 
Classification: Conduct Unbecomiruf' ·:'; \~~ 

. .. l~,~1* J'lH~~~.:. . 
Subject M~mber: Deputy Shane.'. drtiUtpl'l'·;~~;~\ 

Complainant: Captain John Tel i'f\\"r~q\~i:. 
Date Initiated: 5-27-2016 ··";"" 

,;,~;'.'!\'- '";!>"'<' ·:····- ·:;~:~~;:j::I.:·:'c~~1~::;~:;:·.·;~·,\~t· .. 

• ' ~ •q -.,•A 

FindlL~:~~;Q~t:~:,,:·~"01i·~9.t6\·· 
~;::t:~~*~~:~~;::~~~¥l}z,:~ A " 

case 1nvestr"''ator: ed'"tain Mict1dei'.'R'a1e· 
' ·{::~~· ''\:::>..... · lft,;::,;7···2;,·_'.:'.;,/· )\. . l~<...:·~~:l\ . ,;:;;.·,, /i'£:i:,c1:<~f 

On March 27, 2Q ·:.§ls 9q~j~~.qby}~IB~rtif~\IirnB~§).wQ t~r~c::§!b~b:ct an internal . 
"-;, ,'·.,v.v f, ; .. ;'.:.,'<.;3o'._:"~~~.f.:'.· .. _;_.-,',""'"-·~-~,/J:..•<~~\. ~1~,';·'P..:N=.v.>x'.,.,;;V.•\fo, ~'}, ~'<,;,'""-'°"'•>:"-'/~"=>j. 

investigation rega_ ".;JQ~;t1:1~ trllegqtion D~.POtx~;~~qJi~::'lFlaW~Jfcm violated Holmes 
County Sh.eriff's Offi~~J~\tan~,1ar~t~fl~erati~g ~r'.~~~E(fjure,,~1~;~:2 .• (Co~duct J 

Unbecoming). Shenff;;:~.~S?wn11·g~~;1g~~'~h8··~t1fj~<)i·;1r;r the,,/t9f!Y morning hours of a~ 
inciden.t in which DeP>Uty;i-Hamitt.~hlL@.~~~1~(juse ·_·a -dis:tl;Jrq·qnce. Deputy Hamilton 
was given written n~Alf:§ .~Y:c9~~1~·;~g»;:; J~ on< fqyj~?r 2016 that he was 
placed on administ~mit·i~;~~J- ,· J~:r: t; ... ·.. ·;;. <·:~:: , 

~jjL1\<'.·'·,:;fi'·.~;y)t .. ~)~l~3;;~37;·.~f'.~:··:~;,:~~\j ....... :'.·:ig' \ / 
on June 1 f, 2016 I f.~p.~il~;~!S!lJ~•:C~vi~wecf•:t~~;89_s~z,~~~>~,~so #.2016-004786).

1

1 

The case file contaJJ;)~G pq·.9tfense report from'·D~RlltY'·Q\iVqqe Strickland, 
supplem~ntal rep~~~~Sr§rnb~puty Donnie Justice·a~r1'cf'.t~~jpin John Tate and 

1
a 

sworn.written stqteJTlent from Hannah Porter. '<;/~'?,~1 . ~<;;5}f;~-/j .. :~S:;: J:}. .: 

Based -on the statement of Hannah Porter and the reports of Deputy Strickland 
and Captain Tate; Deputy Shane Hamilton came to 100 Judy Lucas Drive Apt'.E-
5 on the evening of May 26, 2016. Deputy Hamilton's girlfriend, Christina ! 
Aldermdn lives at the apartment, but was not at home that evening. Deputy · 
Hamilton'let himself into the apartment using his key. Hannah Porter was · · 
babysitting Ms: Alderman's child and was asleep inside when Deputy Hamiiton 

, I 

came inside an~ woke her up; peputy Hamilton a~ked whe~e Christina was aryd 
Ms. Porter told him she was not there. Deputy Hamilton continued to ask where 
Christina was and began searcting the apartment looking f6r her. Deputy 

.ft~ 1 



Hamilton went upstairs and Ms. Porter continued to ask him to leave. Deputy 
Hamilton then went down to Apartment E-3, where Ms. Alderman was and 
began beating on the dqors and windows. When Ms. Porter told Deputy 
Hamilton she was calling 911, Deputy Hamilton went and sat in his vehicle. 

Also on June 14, 2016 I received a copy of the 911 call from 911 Director Cliff 
McGowan. According to the 911 time stamp on 5-26-16 at 11 :50 PM, Hannah 
Porter calls about Deputy Hamilton coming in the apartment and banging on 

. the neighbors doors. Ms. Porter stated 11gonna need someone to come get 
him" and indicates his girlfriend, Chris~JG:~ Alderman was hiding from him. At 
12:01 AM Holmes County Communic~tJ?;)'ns Officer Fallon Braxton calls Captain 

John Tate and informs him of the sit_~Jf{f~~;, . \ 
· . . · 1fi, : + ;;,,;_,,,, · I 

Also on June 14, 20161 requested,Jn~~9lr'~bll from the incident and any and all 
- ,<.·/(,~·~ .;''), '·, "<..~""._--:,, 

in car camera and body camerq.:fodfag~>:'i)~< · · 
t:.':::Y.;,J;/!\ • . zf/~~J~;~:~~)~, . 

On June 15, 2016 I traveled totlf\~/'fesi'deti€~\of~iDeputy Hamilton and presente() - · · _' .... ,-. <' .-"'~- -~_ .. _..,,..,,....- ,:: ."·:""'1F · \~ . : .'Q..~:5,A 

with a notice of providirig a 1~!qiter:rte~1.~:0J,,,~n~,·;1~, 2016. I explained the 
purpose of the not]s;:e,~,t~e.:~l(?artity!~:iwg::!t8img(qncffii~~r:ighti9 Q. representative. 
- .. · .--~-·r·:'t-.,,..•_ <•.<''.<'"t.·. _ ',:··.i->' .,,_.'''.;'....::: ·• :,.",....~':: ... '"'·'··· .•• /:<-/>p>.-.".· ~JF.·.·::,-"·'·'::,:: .'..,, ~~-;.>·°".· "····--.. ... :.'.'"''.~'::1v;-<••.; .... _ 

Whil~Eb.t;;!bg"t~§ip~t;Yc~;J db,,~~fy,ecJ,"~~ris,t!rio.~f\:lg§f"Qi1qn;:~:Y{tiJte)Xg¥9tLt;§:J21'~rY at 
his_r~si~~n~,~~:~:~._e~~r~iA~~rJ'.<i"6~.P~!:t:~ri'.tr;iJJ:f~'r,~~H~~~~-tcf't19f~prg'*i~~o:_ey,::'' .... ~:-· , 
statement~rE?~qrdir:i~Pt,~~~ Lricid e,rWtl,~'9,~t>Yx~Y l~~J? ke'€J""~t~l~IT)e~r~r9g1-her if she 

wished. ·~z'(~~~~)' · .. {~~"'.:~~ ~;~~~~:, ~,~/{%N4'' 
Also on June ·15:''2~~l\;6,(1ir~~~est~9 Ser@e~r;ih~l1/Flf:'~~,it!:VqE>Jqjf:;i'any and all . , 
footage from the J01lregord1ng @.§puty H'qmlftpF'l qnMgy::c26, 2016. I was advised 

by Sergeant Smith th~1U~il foo~!s~1 '·k~p~l,Y-~~'.1:1~:~~~¥ el~F~W days and would not I 
go pack any later th~ptJJ .00 ~> p4v\21Y2Z;""2~J6. /. ); ,-,;; 1 

· . 1!Mt ~ t,::, . -.. ,, ••. ::-;:;/;. . . ;>;:/ . ,~;@\/ ,'1 ;'1\1;',, 
Also on the evening/1~,f -~-~b.~::,l§""';zp1:, 1~1·f~S~~ye~ g.1::t~~t1Jn~~s,sage from Deputy 
Hamilton that he hq'.~'-@t6~R~~'fpff;;.~is,ie~i~d8,tJg}:f~l*l~Jr~,~\3riff's Office. 

h-~- J_.•'g{:~. ,!( '.<J''.::~[{~:~~:r:: ':::''i;-~t~t;;;'.;: T<'C·;·,.~;~t ·.;',i{::>tlf 1\~l . 
When I arrived at 'fi;q'r:kJf'HJrsdc:t¥.:J0ne 16, 20TO:L~lp'caf~~:FE>'.§puty Hamilton's 

(..,, :·' ~· "- .. <."'0./'=:>·.~~.:,,-," '·-...>·'<->i·~·,I,:.. \ .•. \\ ',·,·>~A · 

resignationand fow91r(:f~g/it::t6 Sheriff Brown and::®~~!9tri':~?te . 
. · rf)r:J~~ :;;;,· · · ~,,~:~~~·~';:~,,. 

Also on ThursdoyUq\Jhe 16, 2016 I was contacted by Ms. Aktetf:ran. Ms. Alderman 
advised she wou'ld provide a statement and requested I meet her at Deputy 
Hamilton's residence later that evening. At approximately 3:30 PM I metwith 
Ms: Alderman and obtained a sworn taped statement. According to Ms. 
Alderman, she got offwork at 9:00 PM. Ms. Alderman explained that Hannah 
Porter had agreed to watch her child at her apartment. When she arrived at 'i 

Judy Lucas Apartments, sh~ saw Jessica Adkins in the parking lot and they 
began talking. She then went tq Jessica's apartment (E-3). Ms. Alderman 

1 

explained that she had been arguing with Deputy Hamilton earlier and was no/ 
answering any text messages or\phone calls from him. Later that evening while 

. I 
' i 

' I 
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at Jessica's apartment, she heard knocking on the door and Deputy Hamilton 
asking where Ms. Alderman was. Jessica told Deputy Hamilton she was not 
there and he kept talking to her through the door. The next thing Ms. Alderman 
knew deputies were at the apartment complex. Ms. Alderman stated she had 
not wanted to talk to Deputy Hamilton that evening but had since made up. · 
Ms. Alderman added Deputy Hamilton had a key to her residence and did ndt 
have any problem with him going inside her residence. Ms. Alderman also J 

added she did not notice anything damaged in her residence. Ms. Alderman 
also indicated she believed Hannah Porter overreacted in calling 911 becausf 
she (Hannah) could have gotten herAn.t<( trouble with her lease. Ms. Alderman 
also added Hannah Porter does not li~~:(Deputy Hamilton because since she 
. ff,;·.·~.' 

had been dating Deputy Hamilton, 1:Z5:e~~·Wty Hamilton has indicated to her 
(Christina) that he did not like Hanr;i;® ':1 lh,. \ 

l}:;>~11~r~.. )1 ". , .. ~ _ - I 
On Monday June 20, 2016 I spo~~~~.1H<:fff~~.6;forter on the telephone. Ms. 
Port~r declined to provide a s']'q,rnJ!?P~j,:st~t~m~nt, but did indicate Deputy 
~am1lton woke her up and w9~:f:''ast~~r9/9~~~'\J.flS1de the apartment. Deputy 
Hamilton then went to Apart@e#\t'E::Tarid'Oegaf:l beating on the door and 
window wanting tQ.;KD~· . · .;'eb~lsfina ~¢~'~tfl:~t~/ M~f30r:t~{,,99Hed 911 and laWi 

enf~· O]~~~~~~;,.?~~: -~=,!lu:~~~<~;~~r~· . . .. . . ·. ' 
Also on ·:.;~J19dy~du~~~2@·~~:~016 .1\;re~~i¥~t:J{~~~B_ody~qfrot:QotaQe:;fr0pn Deputy 

,.,~<·•,< ,; O • • > • •• • :•• f~-< 'S:- ' • ,,.-• ,•'<, ,"" ;•» .<." , • ••'. ';:. • ~ '\ '' \ ,. ' • • "-"' • ... ' • ;. ., -~~"..-: • • : (< -tA < 
Wade Stricklil:lnq]·:~::rfue'o&tjy c8'mera2f(f)otagetdoes n&t:show·on'f~iftteraction with 

Deputy Hamlif~t·'4 \.~;~: ~~~3~it~'.-,~~lrJ~:::~r~ 0::~;~tnnah Porter: 

On Monday June ' {iWl'o l,_spoli~\with Je,s,sic~~d,,~ir1'5\U1;tlffe telephone. Jessica 
agreed to come to t~~JSherlW? }% fi~~ th~:n·~~t ,9¢Y tqf" bvide a statement. 

. . t;;:j';\, '\<('1~;;;, " . . +~: : ' ~<::>"' .\:<'" : 
On Tuesday June 28ir~Ol 6*'1 mefil~iff,r: e,ss· ~ ·Nakins/@ht 1Sheriff's Office and I 

)~[Y ._-, ·(':'<\ ·· ··<"'·,."'-!,~~;>::¢~_,:>.'.·:'<~· ,, ?: ·/--_> ~1 }'}'1: 

obtained a sworn tdt5:e9 stqt~ttr)ent;u?,\§J~ . ··"·· ifig fQl'.:l~ssjqq~\was sitting on her . 
porch when she sa~'.;~~,ri~tf~9:f f?*uJl,;0#!~'.'s~~,aD~~~gr~Q§liR~1~ere sitting on her I 
porch and when D§pLJ/:ty:~Hdr:t\iJtob.'f::l"~llE3aizlJ'p~oQ,lli~ ~:§?J:~9'~,9llvehicle, they went 
inside Ms, Adkins r~~i~~RQ~~:£\$1jE3.J?s8w DeplJfy{ffi~s(r:Y:Hltofi:;'&J~l~ck the door and go 
inside Ms. Aldermd~;',S,.iEi~·iCT,'~ht:e. Deputy Hamiff25 ·· ··· ''@.ri:C'dfme over to her j 

.'•' {·":«' ,f,y• /•', •'" '· A~• • f• ' 

apartment and begt~ .~?beating on the door and win oW, ·approximately 30 
minutes to one hi~·<· wanting her to come to the door. · . ·.. J 

' 

HCSO SOP 1.4.2 states "Personnel shall conduct themselves at all times, both on 
and off duty, in such a manner as to reflect most favorably on the departme0t. 
Conduct unbecoming Sheriff's personnel shall include that which tends to brihg 
th. e .Department into disrepute or reflects discredit upon the person as. a J: 

member of the Department or that, which tends to impair the operation or 
efficiency of the Department or personnel. Employees shall at all times condµct 
themselves in such a manner as to reflect a favorable image on themselves 6nd 
the Holmes County Sheriff's Department." ! 

I , 
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After reviewing all facts and evidence from the investigation, the allegation of 
violation of HCSO SOP 1.4.2 (Conduct Unbecoming) is sustained. Deputy 
Hamilton's actions on the evening of May 26, 2016 did not reflect a favorable. 
image on him or the Holmes County Sheriff's Office and brought disrepute on 
himself and the Holmes County Sheriff's Office. This is based upon the 911 call J 

and statement of Hannah Porter, Jessica Adkins and Christina Alderman along 
with the reports of Deputy Wade Strickland, Deputy Donnie Justice and Captain 
John Tate. 

--#?~) 
. Captain Michae1./£v 

Chief Investigator 
Criminal Investigation Division 
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HOLMES COUNTY SHERIFF's0FFICE 

Date: June 2, 2016 

To: Deputy Shane Hamilton 

I have reviewed all facts and evidence accumulated during the internal investigation which is 
now completed concerning the DCF investigation into alleged child abuse. 

On April 19, 2016 The Holmes County Sheriff's Office received an abuse report from the 
Florida Department of Children and Families alleging you, Deputy Shane Hamilton had spank~d 
your paramours 2 year-old child leaving a bruise. DCF forwarded the allegation to their Jacks<1m 
County office to avoid any conflict. Deputy Hamilton, you were currently on administrative ! 
leave in regards to an officer involved shooting since April 12, 2016. At my recommendation,, 
you were to remain on administrative leave pending the outcome of the DCF investigation to 
determine if a criminal or internal investigation would be needed. 

Captain Raley spoke with DCF CPI Anissa Cottongin, who indicated the report was closed witji 
physical injury not sustained. As you are aware I requested a copy of the report to confirm the 
findings to determine if an internal or criminal investigation is warranted. 

On May 23, 2015 Deputy Hamilton, you provided Captain Raley with a copy of the DCF 
investigative report. Based on the findings of physical injury not sustained, I am releasing you· 
from administrative leave and placing you back to regular duty. 1 

Regretfully 

850·547·442 I -PHONE 850-547-2290 ·FAX 



-HOLMES COUNTY SHERIFF'S 0FFICE--
-INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

-To: Chief Deputy Michael Raley 

- -- Internal. ln~estigation Case Number: IA17.;04 

• -Classification: - Dereliction of Duty Insubordination 

-_ Subject Member:- Corporal WHlia_m Byram 

_Complaincint: Sergeant Segers_ 

-- Date Initiated:• 7 /25/201 t 

Final Report Date: 7 /28/2017 

Case Investigator:- Sergeant Greg Johnson 

On July 26, 2017 I was ordered by Capt. Michael Raley to conduct an internal inve$tigation -­
regarding the allegation Cpl. William Byram allegedly violated HCSO standardized operatmg 
procedure l.4.2 (Unbecoming Conduct) and l-iC Jail Standard Operating Procedure 6091.45(A)3 
(Failure to report for duty/ Absent without leave). - , 

- - - - I -
-On July 26, 2017 SergeantRyan Segers submitted a report that reflects the following; i 

i 
. . . . . 1 

On July25, 2017 at approximately 2:15 pm I, Sergeant Segers received a phone call from' 
Cpl. Byram who advised that he would not be at work tonight. I asked lllm why and he stated it 
was an emergency. I asked Cpl. Byram if everything was ok and what was wrong. Cpl.-Byram 
stated to be honest, Id~ not have any power to my house and I am going to ~y father-in-lawts to 
borrow $73:00, to tum it back on. I told Cpl.Byram, Ok but could he come m to work after lie 
got the power back on. Cpl. Byram stated he might could but if he didn't get the money, he Jas 

- - - - - - - - I 
-- goingto have to geta motel for his wife and kids to sleepin. I told him that would be ok andj 

thanks for calling me. Cpl. Byram did not call me back to irif orrii me on his situation. -! 
• • • ' • • • • • • • 1 

On July 26, 2017 Correctional Deputy Frank Turbeville submitted a report that reflects the 
following; - - - I 

- - - I 
· On July 25, 2017 at approximately 12:21 p.m. I; Transport Deputy F. Turbeville, received -
several texts from Cpl. W. Byram stating that he had no money and his power was out. Arriohg 
the text he stated that he was, going to rob a store to provide for his family. During the - - - -
progression of the aftemoonI receiyd several more texts from_Cpl. Byram threating harm to 

1 



others. I adviSed him not to do anything stupid. Out of concern from Cpl. Byram's wellbeing t 
advised my supervisors, Sgt. L. Lee of this situation as well as Sgt. R. Segers, and Capt. M. 

·Moore; 
Capt. M. Raley contacted rrie later in the afternoon asking me if I heard from Byram and l 

advised him that I had not. _Capt. Raley advised me that if I heard from Byram to let him know .. 
At approximately 9:29 p.m. Cpl. Byram text me asking why I had talked to Capt. Raley. I · 
advised him that I had talked to Capt. Raley because I was worried about him and his family. 

·This incident happened in Washington and in Holmes County. 

· Correctional Deputy Frank Turbeville submitted screen shots of the text messages that he 
received fr~m Cpl. William Byram on Jilly 25, 2017. · . I _ 

• _ "I find. some way to get something done I'm g~ingto Holmes County or Washington Fd · 
rob a store. That's all I can do now for my family" 1 

. i 

• "That's ok my family will have power and what they need. I might be in prison but my 
~~-~-~ . . I 

• "Right now I don't care if Mike Moore or defers fires me I want be coming in for awllile . 
. I fixing to go R6b me a tom thumb." - · · · I . · 

• "My Kids and Wife going to have power. Cause I'm getting the money and then I'm [ 
going to put a bullet in that woman at the power company." ! 

• "When the cops get me i'ni going to tell them my meds is not working." 

• "I'm going to kill me someone." 
I 
I 

• "I never called him back. But I'm going to the power company in the morning~ There1 not 
going to like what I see or do~'' ~ 

• "I'm fixing to make the news my kids and wife are hlingary" 

On July 27, 2017 Capt. Michael,Raley submitted a report that reflects the folloWing; i 
- . . - - 1 

On Tuesday July 25, 2017 at approximately 10:30 PM I, Capt. M. Raley was contacted by. 
. - . j 

· . Deputy Turbeville that Cpl. Byram had contacted him wanting to know what he had told meJ I . 
· .. then contacted the Washington County Sheriffs Office and requested they conduct a welfare 

check on Cpl. Byram. I was later contacted by WCSO Dep. Jared Lee. Dep. Lee advised hehad 
spoken with Cpl. Byram and he (Byram) told him he was just venting and was not serious. Ii 
then spoke with Cpl. Byram and he again told me things had just gotten out of hand. I infonhed 
Cpl. Byram to be in my office the next morning. : 

I 

On Wednesday July 26, 2017 at approximately 9:00 AM CpL Byram came to the Sheriff$ 
. Office .. I gave Cpl. Bryain a notice of internal investigation for violation of HCSO SOP 1.4.2 
(Unbecoming conduct) and HC Jail ;SOP 6091.45(A)(3) (Failure to report for duty). I also ga~e 
Cpl. Byram information regarding tr Employee Assistance Program. Cpl. Byram stated he!had 

. : 2 

I 
I 

·I 
i 



not reported for work because he ]J.ad been under a lot of pressure and had only been venting 
when he sent the text messages. · · 

. . 

The Holmes County Jail Standard Operating ~rocedure 6091.45 states the following: 

DERELICTION OF DUTY INSUBORDINATION 
· A. Dereliction of duty on the part of any employee prejudicial to the proper . 

performance of the functions of the Agency is cause for discipliriary action and/qr 
dismissal.. Dereliction of duty includes, but is not limited to: ! 

I 
i 

9; . ·Displaying a reluctance to properly perform assigned duties, or acting in a manner ; 
tending to bring discredit upon him or herself, the Detention Center or the Agency, or failing tp 
exercise diligence and display interest in pursuit of duties. · · · ' 

The Holmes County Sheriff's Office standard operating procedure states the following; 
. . . . . . . . . \ . . 

· HCSO SOP 1.4.2 Unbecoming Conduct 
·. Personnel shall conduct themselves at all times, both on and off duty~ insuchamanner as tp • 
· reflect most favorablyon the department. Conduct unbecoming Sheriffs personnel shall iri.cluc:le 
. that which.tends to bring the Department into disrepute or reflects discredit upon the person a~ a 

. . . . . . I 

·member ofthe Department or that, which tends to impair the operation or efficiency of the · f 
Department or personnel. Empfoyees shall at all times conduct themselves in such a manner as to . 
reflect a favorable ima~~ Oil themselves and the Holmes County Sheriffls Department. . 

. . . . i 

After reviewing all facts and evidence from the investigation, the allegation of violation of l 
violation ofHCSQ SOP l.4.2 Unbecoming Conduct and Holmes County Jail Standard Operating 

. Procedure 6091.45 (Dereliction of Duty Insubordination) is sustained. Cpl. William Byram did 
act in a manner tending to bring discredit upon himself arid theHolmes County Sheriffs Offic~ .. 
This based on the text messages between Cpl. William Byram and C.O. F. Turbeville: Duringj 

· these conversations CpL Byram conducted himself in an unprofessional manner arid acting in a 
manner tending to bring discredit upon himself and the Holmes County Sheriff's Office. This '.is 
based on copies of the text messages, the report given by C.O. Turbeville, the report submitted! 
by Sgt. R. Segers, and the report submitted by Capt. M. Raley. · i 

·~~---~-

. Sergeant Greg Johnson 
Criminal Investigation Division 

3 



HOLMES. COUNTY:.SHERIFF'S. OFFICE 

SHERIFFJOHN·TA:TE 211 N. Qkl~homa St. Bonifay; FL 32425 
.r ·)'hone: 850-547-4421 

F!!X: 850-547c2290 
www :bolmescosheriff,org 

January 10, 2017 · 

To: Carl Stoldt 

On January 9, 2017 Captain Raley was contacted by Investigator Jeff Snell of the Jackson County Sheritf s Offite. . . 
Investigator Snell advised they WE;!re imiestigating an incident in which they received reports of a subject imp¢rsonating 

. a law enforcement officer and you were the suspect. Investigator Snell also advised you had been stopped by their · · 
agency and were d.riving a vehicle that matched the description and the victims identified you as the suspect.I Captain 
Raley then informed me of this information. This is a violation of HCSO SOP 1.4.2 (Unbecoming Conduct). 

As of this writing, January 10, 2017 you are being separated from your position as an Auxiliary Law Enforcem¢nt Officer 
with the Holmes County Sheriff's Office and you will return all property belonging to the Holmes County Sherjff's Office 
in a timely fashion. · ·. . · . . · · · 

Also you may provide a written response to this decision. If you choose to do so it will be placed in your perdonnel file 
. I . 

Regretfully, ! 

Sheriff John Tate · 



.COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

SHERIFF JOHN TATE 

Date:. January 4, 2017 

To: .Sheriff John Tate 

From: Capt. Michael Raley 

Subject: Corrections Deputy Zach Neitsch 

. Reference: Inquiry into ·allegations of improper strip search 

I 
I. 

· 211 N. Okl~hom~ ~t. Bonifay, FL 32425 
· ·)Phone: 850.-547-4421 

: Fax: 850-547-2290 
·\\iny.holmescoshl'l"iff.org 

I . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 

· .. On the eveni~g of T,hursday December 15'. 2016 I was contacted at home byJcorporal 
Frank Turbeville. According to Corporal Tuberville, he had two inmates allege to him they 
had been strip searched in front of other inmates and wanted to file a grievance u~der · 
PREA. I informed Corporal Turbevillle to allow the inmates to write out their statemerits and I 
would follow up with an interview. 

On Friday December 16, 2016 I informed :Sheriff Tate of the allegations. Sheriff Tate 
and I met with Corrections Deputy Neitsch at the Sheriff's Office. According to Deputy 
Neitsch, he and Corrections Deputy Riley Pate decided to search the trustee pod b;ecause 

·of a shortage of sheets in laundry. As they entered the pod, they ordered the trustees to get 
against the wall. Deputy Pate fuegan searching the bµnks and Deputy Neitsch bedan strip 
searching the inmates. Deputy1 Neitsch had stripped s,earched Inmate Jackson and Inmate 
. . . . , .. ·' . . . , I J 

• ~elley When Corpor~I Moore entere~ the pod and sat the strip searches. c.orporal Moore 
informed Deputy Ne1tsch that .any stnp search would qe conducted out of view of 0ther 
inmates .. Deputy Neitsch stated he realized he had erred and was sorry. Deputy N~itsch was 
informed I would be interviewing the inmates and he could possibly receive disciplte. 

. Later on Friday December 16, 2016 I traveled to the Holmes County Jail and ' 
interviewed several inmates.· A sworn taped statement was obtained from Inmate .Jacob 
Kelley. According to Inmate Kelley, on the evening of December 12, 2016 C/D Pate and 
CID Riley had entered the trustee pod and ordered the inmates to get against the ~all. 
While C/D Pate was searching the bunks, C/D Neitsch ordered Inmate Jackson to strip for a 

· search and Inmate Jackson refused and asked if they could perform the strip search behind 
. . . . . I 

in the bathroom. C/D Neitsch told Inmate Jackson he would take his gain time anq take his 
trustee status if he didn't comply. Inmate Jackson complied and CID Neitsch orderred 

. . I 

Inmate Jackson to strip again. C/D Neitsch told Inmate Jackson it wasn't good enough and 
ordered Inmate Kelley to squat and cough again. Inmate Kelley performed a strip ~earch at 
which time Corporal Moore entered I the pod and told C/D Neitsch not to strip seardh 
inmates in view of other inmates. No other inmates objected to the searches not mlade any 
comments dt the time. Inmate KelleVstated other inmates stated it was a PREA incident. 
Inmate Kelley staled CID Neilsch pa!t searched the inmates that were ahead of hi1 and 



HOLMES · COUNTY SllERIFF'S OFFICE 
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· .. SHERIFF JQHN TATE 211 N:Oklahoma.s;:o:::.~;~!~7~:;; 
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I 
. . . , - I 

Inmate Jackson. Inmate Kelley also stated Corporal Moore took Inmate Jackson b<1:1ck out 
into the hall with C/D Neitsch to talk to him about the situation. Inmate Kelley stateJ:i he 
wanted to talk with a lawyer regarding the incident. Inmate Kelley also described dn . 
incident approximately 6 to 8 weeks prior where C/D Neitsch and C/D Pate strip:sedrched 

- the trustee pod in the open. . . . J 

. - . . I 
Later on Friday December 16, 2016 I obtained a sworn taped statement from:lnmate 

· Robert Vermillion, Inmate Jerome Derrell Works, Inmate RoberfPlatt and Inmate Nicholas 
Cox. All of the inmate's statements corroborated Inmate Kelley's statement. Inmate 
Vermillion describedthe strip search as inappropriate. Inmate Vermillion describedithe 
process as the inmate dropping their pants and squat and cough with no other clothing or · 

. - I 

body parts searched. · l 
Later on Friday December 16,2016 I met with Inmate John Patrick Jackson a~d 

obtained a sworn taped statement. Inmate Jackson's statement corroborates Inmate 
Kelley's statement regarding the strip search. Inmate Jackson went on to say when' Corporal 
Moore called him into the corridor with CJD Neitsch to talk with him about the incident. Cpl. 
Moore asked Inmate Jackson what it would take to keep Captain Braxton about the 
incident. Inmate.Jackson told Cpl. Moore he would like 10 extra days gain time and Cpl. 
Moore told him he couldn't do that but he could get him some food. Inmate Jacks.on stated 
he was scared he would be set up by another- officer. Inmate Jackson also thought about 
incident would fall under PREA; Inmate Jackson stated he felt sexually violated, ho~ever he 
denied any sex act or penetration~ _Inmate jackson also alleged C/D Neitsch singled him 

· . out and harasses him because they knew each other from school. Inmate Jackso11 also 
. alleged CpL Moore fried to bribe him by offering to bring him food instead ·of reporting the 
incident to Captain Braxton. I asked Inmate Jackson if he wanted to be transported to 
another facility and he stated he would consider being housed in the Washington County 
Jail. 

.. On Monday December 19, 20161 contacted Washington County Jail Administriator Karla 
Brock and arranged for Inmate Jackson to be transported to the Washington Cov~ty Jail for 
housing.· Later that evening I-was contacted by C/D Thelma Mahan who advisE:td Inmate 
Jackson refused to be transferred. C/D Mahan also had obtained a written request from 
Inmate Jackson requesting ho further action be taken in the matter. - i 

On Thursday December 29, 2016 I traveled to the Holmes County Jail to speak with 
· Inmate Kelley and Inmate Jackson. -1 advised Inmate Kelley that based on all statements and 

HC Jail SOP no PREA violation occurred, Inmate Kelley advised he was satisfied with the 
outcome of the investigation. 

. Later on December 29, 2016 lrimate Jackson arrived at the jail from his work squad and 
no male Correction Deputies were present to .strip search him to enter the jail. I vo'lunteered 

· to conduct the search lo avoid waifing. Inmate Jackson entered the booking shtver room 

I 



HOLMES , COQNTY SHERIFF'S ·OFFICE 
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and removed his boots and shirt. While I was gathering Inmate Jacksons boots iand shirt. 
Inmate Jackson dropped his pants, squatted. and coughed then pulled up h.is 9ants and 
began to get dressed. I-asked Inmate Jackson what he was doing and he explained that was 
how strip searches were _done. I th~n explain~d the prop~r pro_cedure for ln~ate Jaqkson and 
conducted a proper stnp search (1e, .checking all clothing, visually checking all pqrts of the 
body). I then informed Inmate Jackson based on all of the statements and HC Jqil SOP no 
PREA violation occurred. Inmate Jackson advised he was satisfied with the outcor;ne of the 
investigation ahd wished to continue his sentence at the Holmes County Jail. 

Holmes County Jail SOP's 

Holmes County Jail SOP 67 69 covers Sexual Assault Preventions. 

6769.lODEFINITIONS FROM PREA 12003 · 
A. Nonconsensual sex acts-· Contact of any person withowt his or her consent or of a 

- person who is unable to consent. or refuse; between the penis and the vagina or the 
mouth and the penis, vagina br anus; of penetration of the anal or genital opening 
of another person by hand; finger, or other ·object 

B. Abusive sexual contact-Contact of ahy person without his or her conse~t, or of a 
person who is unable to consent or refuse; and intentional touching, eith~r directly 
or through clothing or the genitalia, anus, groin, breast,.inner thigh or butto4:ks of any 

c; ft~:f~~-xual misconduct-Any behavior or atof a sexual nature directed tdwards an 
. inmate. by an employee, volunteer, official visitor or agency reprekentative. 

Romantic relationships between staff and inmate are included. 
D. · Staff sexual harassment-.. Repeated verbal statements or comments of a sexual 

·nature to ·_an·. i~mate_ by ·an . employee,. volunteer,· official visitor o~ agency 
. representative, including:· demeaning references · to gender . of derogatory 
· comments about body clothing; profane of obscene language or gesturejs. 

Holmes County SOP 6722 cover Inmate Search Procedures. Strip Search procddures are 
I 

covered. ! · 

6722.30STRIP SEARCHES 
A. As used in this section,· the term "strip-search" means having an arrested person 

remove or arrange some or all of his or her clothing so as to permit a visual inspection 
.of the genitals, buttocks, dnus, breasts, or undergarments of such person.: . / 

B. - NO. person arrested for. a Jtraffic,- regulatory, or misdemeanor offense, except in a 
case which. is violent in ~ature,. which involves a weapon, or which involves a 
controlled substance, shall be strip searched unless: 
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1. -There is probable cause .to believe that the individual is concealing a wJ

1 

eapon, 
a controlled substance, or stolen property; or , 

2. A judge at first appearance has found that the person arrested c<I1nnot be 
released either on recognizance or bond and therefore shall be incdrcerated 
in the county jaiL - - · - - · I · 

C. Those who -do not meet the criteria established will be given the opportunity to 
bathe and change into a facility issued uniform in a secure area. _ 

D. No one shall order a strip search within the agency or facility without obtaining the 
written authorization of the sup·ervising officer on duty.: ' 

. I 
E. A person of the same gender as the arrested person and- on premises "'(here the 
· - search cannot be observed by persons not physically conducting or obs~rving the 

search pursuant to this section shall perform the strip search. Any observeJ'r shall be 
_ of the same gender as thearrested person. _ 
F. Once the strip search is completed a report indicating the reason as well as the 

finding for the search shall be submitted to the Jail Administrator. I 
G. All non~traffic felonies' and those Who meet the criteria stated above _will be strip­

searched. 
H. The accepted procedure for conducting a strip-search is: 

1. Once the inmate is taken to.an' appropriate area (i.e. booking room shower), 
he or she will be· ordered td remove their clothing. The corredions officer will 

-make a thorough _examination of the clothing. J 

2. Do not begin a. search of the Clothing until all clothing is removed, 0therwise 
- distractions may occur. When searching. the inmate's clothing, the !following 
• _ procedures should be observed:_ _ J _ 

-. __ a. Examine all products.• -
- b. Check all linings, cuffs, waistbands, seams, and other sewn ~reas. 

c. Turn clothing inside out to complete the examination. 
- d. Examine inside the shoes and soles and heels. 

3. • The. corrections officer will visually search the inmate for contrab0n
1
d hidden 

on his or her body. This search also will include looking for lice, needle tracks, 
- - I 

previous suicide attempts and recent personal injury or infections th;at should 
be brought to the attention of the Medical Staff. Some aspects of t~e search 
may be unple9sant,_but they are all necessary and must be very thbrough. 

- a. Examine casts and bandages. The cast, whether legitimate or phony, 
provid_es dh excellent hiding place forcontraband. 

-b. Examine - artificial Hmbs _and folse teeth. This may 'be very 
embarrassing to ask an .inmate to remove an artificial device to be 
inspected, but security and sanitation are more importbnt than 

- I - • - , 

sensitive feelings. · _ : 
c. Have the in~ate thoroughly run his or her fingers through their hair. 
d. Exam~ne wit~ a?equate light the inmate's arr:ipits, feet a~d hands. 

Examine the 
1
gro1n and rectum area. Have the inmate bend over and 

-_ spread theirluttocks. - -
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I 

. . . I 
e. Examine mb'uth, ears, and nose. Have the inmate move his tongue 

so that it is possible to see if he or she is hiding pills or. cohtraband 
· _ _ · u~d.er the to~gue. . · . . . . . I . · · 

· . 4: Note any. inJury or e~1dence of medical def1c1ency or potential pro~ler:n such 
as body lice; abrasions or sores, and make entry of recent cuts or !pru1ses for 

.. immediate attention by the Medical staff. ' 

Conclusion 

. - Based on the statements of Inmate Jackson, Inmate Kelley, other inmate witnesses, and 
C/D Neitsch, there is no evidence Of any PREA violation by C/D Zack Neitschj and the 
allegation of a PREA violation is unfo1.mded. No sexual act, either consensual or noh-

. . . . , I 

consensual; or staff misconduct or harassment was found to have occurred. While Holmes 
County Jail SOP 6722.30 specifically does not indicate strip searches are to be conbucted in 

· private, it does stated they will be conducted· in "an appropriate area (ie booking room 
shower)", therefore the strip searches in Yi~w,of other inmates would be viewed as a sustained 
violation of Holmes County Jail SOP 6722.30.· Also based o·n the stOtements of the interviewed 
inmates and Inmate Jackson conduct duri'dg the strip search by this officer, strip; searches 
procedures have been not been properly conducted and are ineffective. 

Captain Michael Raley 
· Chief Investigator 
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COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

SHERIFF JOHN TATE 

April 17, 2017. 

To: Ashley Burnham 

211 N. Oklahoma St. Bonifay, FL 32425 
Phone: 850-547-4421 

Fax: 850-547-2290 
\VWW .holmescosheriff.org 

On April 14, 2017 you were arrested by the Orlando Police Department for the charge of Battery 
Domestic Violence. Based on your arrest, this is a violation of Holmes County Sheriffs Office Standard 
Operating Procedures 1.4.5 (Conformance to Laws). I 

I 
As of this writing, April 17, 2.017 you are being separated from your position as an Auxiliary Deputy : 
Sheriff with the Holmes County Sheriffs Office and you will return all property belonging to the Holm.es 
County Sheriffs Office in a timely fashion. , 

Also you may provide a written response to this decision. If you choose to do so it will be placed in Jour 
personnel file. I 

Regretfully, 

Sheriff John Tate 



COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

SHERIFF JOHN TATE 

To: Sheriff John Tate 

Internal Investigation Case Number: IA 18-03 

Classification: Vehicle Accident involving a fatality 

Subject Member: Deputy Zach Neitsch 

Date Initiated: 3/24/2018 

Final Report Date: 9 /28/2018 

Case Investigator: Lieutenant Greg Johnson 

211 N. Oldaboma SI. ~onif:ty, .FL 324i5 
Phone: 850-547-4421 

Fax: 850-547-2290 
www.bolmescosheriff.or~ 

I 

I 
On September 28, 2018 I, Lt Johnson was assigned to conduct an internal investigation for the below stated vehicle 

crash. I was advised in writing that the state attorney and the Florida Highway patrol have concluded an independent 

investigation. Their independent finding did not result in any criminal prosecution or finding of fault on the part: of 

Deputy Nietsch. A copy of both reports will be attached to this investigation. 

On Saturday March 24, 2018 Deputy Zach Neitsch submitted the following report: . 

On 03/24/2018 I was out at the Holmes County Jail on Lonnie Lindsey Drive when a call comes out in refere+ce to a 

possible death on Trailer Park Drive. Deputy Cory Guster was dispatched to the call and I advised Dispatch I w0uld be in 
I 

route as back up. I then got into my patrol car and drove out of the parking lot of the Jail onto Lonnie Lindsey Drive 

traveling Westbound towards Thomas Drive. I initiated the lights and sirens on my patrol car for an emergencJ response. 

I then turned right onto Thomas drive traveling North on Thomas Drive. I then went around the curve beside ~olmes Cl 

and then was traveling Westbound on Thomas Drive going down the Westbound Lane. I then approached thej 

intersection of Hospital Drive when a vehicle pulled into the path of my patrol car coming from the eastbound !lane 

turning onto Hospital Drive. I then attempted evasive maneuvers and slammed on my brakes. My patrol car tren 

collided with the other vehicle. I then got out of my patrol car when both vehicles came to final rest. I immediately 

radioed what occurred into dispatch. I noticed I had a lot of pain coming from my right foot. I hobbled over td the other 

vehicle to check on the driver's status and she was unresponsive. I was unable to get her passenger side door bpen to 

render aid due to it being damaged from the crash. Other patrol units, Fire, and EMS arrived on scene shortly btter the 
I wreck. I was then transported to the Hospital in a patrol unit. i 

The only violation of the Holmes County Sheriffs Office policy and procedure which I am aware of is that Deputy 

Neitsch was not wearing his seat belt at the time of crash. (See section 5.2 policy and procedures). This violation is 

sustained. A review of Deputy Neitsch's personnel file reflects him receiving a letter of council on March 3, 2018 for 

unsatisfactory performance. 

Lieutenant Greg Johnson 
' I 

I 
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COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

SHERIFF JOHN TATE 

To: Sheriff John Tate 

Internal Investi~ation Case Number: IA19-0l 

Classification: Failure to follow Holmes County Jail Policies and Procedures 

211 N. Oklahoma St. Bonifay, FL 32425 
Phone: 850'-547-4421 

Fax: 850-547-2290 
Wlnl·.holmescosheriff.or2 

I 
I 
I 

Subject Members: Detention Spe<:ialisf Stephen R Jenkins, Sgt. Young, Cpl Sellers, hnnate Joshua JI Long, 
Inmate Donald Groover, Inmate Casey Epley, Inmate Clyde Hunter. 

Date Initiated: 01 /2R/2019 

Final Report Date: 02/07/2019 

Case Investi~ator: Sergeant Gary Harris, Criminal Investigations Division 

Sheriff Tate. 

On 01/28/2019 I was ordered by Maior Michael Raley to conduct an internal investigation on Detention 
Specialist Stephen Jenkins. The investigation was ordered as a result of Inmate Hunter stating to Sgt. f Young 
and or Cpl. Sellers that some of the actions taken by Detention Specialist Jenkins were in appropriate! and were 
possible violations. After looking at video obtained from the Holmes County Jail, it has been determihed that 
several violations of policy and procedures pertaining to interaction with inmates had occurred all of ~hich 
were involving Detention Specialist Jenkins. This incident occurred during the weekend ofOl/18/2019 between 

the hours of Midnight and 6:00 am. . I 
On 01/22/2019, Jail Administrator, Captain Roy Wade, officially notified Detention Specialist Jerikins via 

letter that he would be under an internal investigation. Captain Wade delivered the letter to Specialist Jenkins 
I 

which then signed the letter acknowledging receipt. Captain Wade provided me with a copy of each letter given 
to Jenkins which included an alleged violation of standard operating procedures, and a notice of intei,:nal 
investigation. 

Lieutenant Clint Smith provided me with.video surveillance from the Rear Control room as well as the Pods 
from the Holmes County Jail covering 01/18/2019 and 01/19/2019, and Major Raley provided me with sections 
6011 and 6091.10 of the Holmes County Sheriffs Office Policies and Procedures. These sections give the 

,-, policies and procedures for the supervision bf inmates as well as interactions with inmates. , 
I 
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After viewing several hours of the video surveillance, reading the reports, and talking with Captain Wade, 
the following is what I discovered during my :filquiry into these incidents. 

Detention Specialist Jenkins reported for nightshift (1800hrs-0600hrs) on 01/18/2019. Jenkins was 
1

assigned 
to rear housing while other officers were assigned to the booking area. Jenkins is seen on video numerous times 
having interactions with the inmate in question, Joshua Long. This is consistent with all statements thht Cpl 
Sellers and Sgt. Young obtained ~om inmates Groover, Epley, and Hunter regarding violations. J 

According to the policies and procedures of the Holmes County Jail provided to me by Major Raley, in 
section 6091.10 Tnternction with Inmates: i 
(A-2.) Employees shall not become socially involved with an incarcerated inmate. i 

(A-3.) Employees shall not compromise Detention Center security as a result of communication or interaction 
with inmates. I 

I discovered in my inquiry that at certain times during Jenkins shift, he would give a certain sign, such as a 
flash of light from his flashlight, to get the attention of the inmates. At one-point inmate Long is seen fuotioning 
to someone as to ask the question, Am I supposed to exit this Pod? The camera footage did not pick uJ who 

I 

inmate Long was talking to but it is believed to be Specialist Jenkins because he had exited his post and was 
making a round through the hallway. Shortly after Jenkins arrives back to his post, inmate Long is seen exiting 
his Pod and arriving at Jenkins post at the control room. 

While at Jenkins post, Jenkins is seen on camera giving inmate Long coffee and allowing Long to 
disseminate coffee to other inmates inside his pod, as well as other holding cells. At one-point Jenkins and 
inmate Long is standing at the doorway of the control room and seem to be having a very lengthy conversation. 

I 
Jenkins is seen looking out at inmate Long and looking back inside the control room as ifhe was checJ.<lng to 
see if anyone would be watching the cameras from bboking. This incident occurred for quite sometime until 
Long freely goes back to his cell in Pod C. This incident clearly violates 6091.10 (A2) (A3). 

1 

It is my understanding after talking with Captain Wade, the doors to the Pod where Long was comfug from 
could have been unlocked for the inmates to possibly roam freely such as Long did. This would be a v!olation 

I 
of 6091.10 (A3). This incident did occur during the watch of Detention Specialist Jenkins. J 

After reviewing all the facts and evidence in th.is case, the allegation that Detention Specialist Jenkins did, in 
fact, violate the policies and procedures of the Holmes County Jail as it pertains to the Interaction witH Inmates 
found in section 6091.10 of the policies and procedures is s~stained. Although Jenkins stated to Sgt. McNeal 
during his interview that he didn't know that he wasn't supposed to have contact with the inmates," it'sJ clearly 
defined in section 6091.10, where it states that employees shall not become socially involved with incarcerated 
inmates. It is also clear that security in the Holmes County Jail was compromised due to the fact that ilim.ate 
Long was able to come and go seemingly as he pleased with the doors being unlocked. ! 

On 12/26/2018 Steven Jenkins was given a copy of the Holmes County Sheriffs Office Policy andj 
Procedures to read and signed his signature stating that he would do so. 

On 01/30/2019 Major Raley made contact with Specialist Jenkins and asked him to meet with me on 
02/01/2019 at 10:00 am at the Sheriffs Office, in reference to the internal investigation. On 02/01/2019 

I 
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Specialist Jenkins did not show up like he was asked to do. It should be noted that Specialist Jenkins never 
called to say that he wasn't going to show up as well. _ I 

On 02/04/2019 Major Raley informed me that Specialist Jenkins had submitted his resignation letter via 
email on this same day. This internal was concluded on 02/07/2019. 

/ 
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SHERIFF JOHN TATE 

To: Major Michael Raley 

Internal Investigation Case Number: IA19-02 

Classification: . Failure to follow Holmes County Policies and Procedures 

Subject Members: Deputy Justin Sims 

Date Initiated: 02/28/2019 

Final Report Date: 03/05/2019 

Case Investigator: Sergeant Jason Stafford, Patrol Division 

Major Raley, 

211 N. Oklahoma St. Bonifay, FL 32425 
Pboi1c: 850-547-4421 

Fax: 850-547-2290 
www.holmcscoshcriff.org 

On 02/28/2019 you ordered me to conduct an internal investigation on Deputy Justin Sims. The investigation 
was ordered as a result of an altercation between Deputy Justin Sims and his wife, Bonifay Police Offi~er Betty 
Sims. It is alleged that during the course of this altercation Deputy Sims displayed and discharged a fir~arm. 
The incident occurred in the evening hours of February 26th, 2019 and continued into the morning hours of 
February 27th, 2019. The incident involves a possible violation of the Holmes County Sheriffs Office:Policies 
and Procedures, specifically, conduct unbecoming an Officer. 

On 02/28/2019 I conducted an interview with Officer Betty Sims in regards to the incident. Officer Sims gave a 
sworn taped statement on what she could .remember from the incident. Officer Sims stated an argumen~ 
occurred between her and Deputy Justin Sims·after she noticed a pill was missing from some of his mJdication. 

I 

Officer Sims stated that during the argument that occurred at their residence of 2166 Jim Bush Rd, De~uty Sims 
walked out and got into a vehicle wanting to leave. Officer Sims stated as she was begging Deputy Sims not to 
leave, he told her to move and then fired three rounds out of the driver's side window into the dirt with a pistol. 

I 

Officer Sims then advised she asked Deputy Sims not leave to which he agreed. Officer Sims advi~ed ~fter this 
incident, Deputy Corey Guster, his girlfriend,JDeputy Sims and she went out to eat in Panama Cit)i. Officer 
Sims advised that while they were on the wa~ home, she was somewhat intoxicated and got "mouthy" j Officer 
Sims advised during the time Deputy Sims shot the gun, she was not in fear by his actions. Earlier in the day 
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and prior to this incident, I received information that Officer Sims reported to several people Deputy Sims 
pulled a gun on her, threatened to kill her and himself. When I asked Officer Sims about this, she stated this was 
not correct. 

On 02/28/2019 I conducted an interview with Deputy Corey Guster who was present with Officer Sims and 
Deputy Sims on the day of02/26/2019. Deputy Guster gave a sworn statement of the events of that night. 
Deputy Guster advised when th~y got to the Sims residence, Deputy Sims was outside and Offic_er Sim$ was 

inside. Deputy Guster stated he could tel~ there was tension between them, and was told they had been ~rguing 
throughout the day. Deputy Guster stated while on the way to Panama City, Officer Sims and Deputy S.ims were 

cutting up and seemed fine. Deputy Guster stated they went to Hooters to eat, Officer Sims and Deputyi Sims 
ordered a pitcher of beer and while eating and drinking, began arguing. Deputy Guster stated the argurrient got 

! 

worse, and Deputy Sims got up, left the table and advised he was going to the car. Deputy Guster then stated 

Officer Sims kept drinking until they left. On the way home, according to Deputy Guster, the arguing ~ecame 
increasingly heated, until at one point, Deputy Sims pulled the vehicle over at Highway 79 and Pipkin Rd. 
Deputy Guster stated both exited the vehicle and Deputy Sims "squared up" to each other nose to nose Jin a 
fighting position. Deputy Guster exited the vehicle and got in between them to break them up. The arguing 

continued as Deputy Sims was trying to get Officer Sims back in the vehicle. Deputy Guster was able to get 

them both back in the vehicle and they continued north on Highway 79. Deputy Guster advised the arguing 

continued and they pulled over again at Lighthouse Assembly of God Church on Highway 79. Deputy iGtister 
advised everyone got out of the vehicle, Deputy Sims threw everyone's stuff out of the vehicle and sped off 
continuing north. Deputy Guster made contact with Dispatcher Cricket Hall to come pick them up. On~e 
Dispatcher Hall arrived, Deputy Guster tried to get Officer Sims to get in the vehicle, but she kept tryi*g to go 
out into the Highway. When Deputy Guster could not get her in the vehicle, he called Sheriff John Tat¢. 

I 

Deputy Guster advised during the course of the arguing on the way back from Panama City, Officer Sims made 
I 

several statements that Deputy Sims threatened to shoot her and shoot himself. When Deputy Sims exited the 
restaurant to go his vehicle, Deputy Guster stated Officer Sims told him Deputy Sims had threatened tb shoot 

her and himself several times throughout the day. Deputy Guster stated during the arguing on the way 'home 
when Officer Sims stated Deputy Sims threatened to shoot himself and her, Deputy Sims stated "now ~ou know 

! 

that isn't true". Deputy Guster also recalled Officer Sims told him Deputy Sims pulled a gun on her, held it to 

her head and threatened to kill her and himself, while they were at their residence. 
I 

. I 
On 02/28/2019 I conducted an interview with Catherine Austin, girlfriend of Deputy Guster, who was; present 

with Deputy Sims, Officer Sims and Deputy Guster on 02/26/2019. A sworn taped statement was given by 

Catherine Austin of the events of that night. ~atherine stated while at the restaurant the arguing between Deputy 
Sims and Officer Sims worsened. Catherine $tated when Deputy Sims got mad_and walked outside, Officer 

I 

! 
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Sims started to drink more. Catherine stated when she went to the bathroom with Officer Sims, Officer Sims 
told her Deputy Sims headbutted her in the nose, which was the reason she was wearing makeup. Officer Sims 
also stated to Catherine that Deputy Sims pulled a gun on her, turned it on himself and threatened to kill 
himself. Catherine stated on the way home she was sitting in the back with Officer Sims, trying to keep lher in 
the vehicle. Catherine stated she noticed they were going fast and when she looked, she noticed they were going 
approximately 120 mph. Catherine stated when she asked Deputy Sims to slow down, he snapped and s~arted 
cussing at them. Catherine advised 1they pulled over just inside Holmes County so Officer Sims could u~e the 

bathroom and the arguing continued between Officer Sims and Deputy Sims. Catherine also confi~ed lbfficer 
Sims made multiple statements about Deputy Sims pulling a gun on her. 

I 

I 
On 03/01/2019 I conducted an interview with Deputy Greg Gordon who gave a sworn taped statement kd 
responded to a call from dispatch to assist a Holmes County Deputy at Lighthouse Assembly of God ciurch on 
02/26/2019. Deputy Gordon stated once on scene he saw multiple people in the church parking lot. De~uty 
Gordon advised one of the subjects were Officer Sims. Deputy Gordon advised when he was alone ~alking with 
Officer Sims, she stated her husband was abusing her physically by hitting her and it had been going ori for a 
while. Officer Sims also stated to Deputy Gordon that her husband Justin Sims had held a gun to her he

1

ad and 
said he would kill her then kill himself after he killed her. Officer Sims also made statements that she deserved 
to be hit on she deserved to be called fat. Deputy Gordon did state that Officer Sims was intoxicated during the 
time he talked to her . 

. On 03/01/2019 I conducted an interview with Deputy Jeremy Abbott who gave a sworn taped statemen~ and 
responded to a call from dispatch to assist a Holmes County Deputy at Lighthouse Assembly of God Church on 
02/26/2019. Deputy Abbott stated once on scene he saw Officer Sims and dispatcher Cricket Hall on t~e 
ground. Deputy Abbott advised that has he got out of the car they both stood up and Cricket Hall advis~d him 

I 

that she was trying to prevent Officer Sims from going into the Highway to prevent her from harming herself 
and she was intoxicated. Deputy Abbott then advised he spoke with Officer Sims and asked her what ~as going 
on. Officer Sims stated to Deputy Abbott that "he has done things to me, I really don't want to say". Deputy 
Abbott advised he asked her again what was going on and Officer Sims responded by saying how wou~d you 
feel if your significant other put a gun to your head. Deputy Abbott stated he asked when this happened and 

I 
Officer Sims stated she didn't want to say anything else and didn't want to get him in trouble. Officer Sims kept 
stating she deserved this over and over. Deputy Abbott then advised that he spoke with Deputy Guster'~ 
girlfriend Catherine. Catherine advised Deputy Abbott that Officer Sims told her that Deputy Sims had been 
abusive to her, calling her fat and also made statements that Deputy Sims put a gun to her head. 

I 
I 

On 03/03/2019 I conducted an interview with 'chasity Hall (Cricket) in reference to the events on 02/2~/2019 
and including Officer Sims and Deputy Sims. Chasity Hall gave a sworn taped statement. Chasity Hall;stated 

I 
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that she got called by Deputy Guster in reference to Officer Sims and Deputy Sims having a verbal altercation. 
Chasity Hall stated she met them at the Lighthouse Assembly of God Church, Chasity Hall stated that Officer 
Sims, Deputy Guster and Catherine Austin got out of the vehicle and Deputy Sims drove off. Chasity Hall then 

stated during her interaction with Officer Sims, she stated there were a lot of things people didn't know land that 
some point during the day a gun was pulled out and put to her head and shots were fired in the groUlld. Officer 
Sims stated to Chasity Hall that it was her husband Deputy Sims. Chasity Hall advised that Officer Sim~ was 
highly intoxicated. 

I 

On 03/03/2019 I conducted a interview with Theresa Cooper and a sworn taped statement was gave by f heresa 

Cooper in reference to the incident involving Officer and Deputy Sims on the night of 02/26/2019. Theresa 

Cooper stated that she got a phone call around midnight from Chasity Hall saying that there were somelissues 
! 

and was called to pick some people up. Theresa Cooper stated she then drove to the Lighthouse Assemfuly of 
God Church where her and Chasity Hall tried for approximately an hour to get Betty Sims in the car to k1eep it 

off. Theresa Cooper stated that during the time of trying to get her in the car. Officer Sims made statemlents that 
her husband had pulled a gun on her during the morning and held it to her head then shots were fired. J 

I 

' 

On 03/04/2019 Deputy Sims was provided notice by Major Michael Raley at 10:04 A.M. to come to the Holmes 
County Sheriffs Office on the following day (03/05/2019) and time of 10:00 A.M. to speak with me. 

On 03/05/2019 I conducted an interview with Deputy Justin Sims. Deputy Sims was ad~ised of 
the Holmes County Sheriffs Office Member/Subject Administrative rights form "Garritryr 
Notice." Deputy Sims gave a sworn taped statement of the events involving him and his\wife 
Officer Sims. Deputy Sims advised that during the day him and his wife got into a verbal 
altercation about some of his medication. Deputy Sims advised that during the argumen~ he 

. I 

went to leave and got into his vehicle and at which time his wife Officer Sims stood in front of 
the vehicle. Deputy Sims advised-he asked her several times to let him leave and she stof d in 
front of the vehicle about 5 feet away hollering at him. Deputy Sims stated that his general 

I 
stress relief is going out and shooting his weapon at a target. Deputy Sims advised that during 

I 
the argument he chose to shoot down at a pole under the carport. Deputy Sims advised that she 
then moved from the car and he pulled out, Officer Sims then walked to the driver side ~nd 
begged him not to leave that they had company coming over. Deputy sims advised he a~reed to 
stay. Deputy Sims then stated that during the time in Panama he got upset that she woultln't eat 
and didn't want her to get drunk. Depufy Sims then advised he went out to his vehicle ahd 
waited for them to finish to prevent an argument. Deputy Sims then stated they left to g~ home 
and Officer Sims was arguing saying ope minute he loved her and one minute he didn'tl I then 
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asked Deputy Sims about accusations made in his presences of him pulling a gun on her ~nd 

threating to kill her then himself. Deputy Sims advised that it wasn't true and those state1;Ilents 

were made because she was drunk. I then asked Deputy Sims about Officer Sims making the 
I I 

accusations of him pulling a gun on her threating to kill her and himself. Deputy Sims advised 

Officer Sims never said it once coming back from Panama. However that above statem~~t from 

Deputy Sims contradicts the statements of both wit~esses in the vehicle Deputy Guster aha 

Catherine Austin. 

After reviewing all the evidence, speaking with all witnesses, and speaking with Deputy Sims, the alle~ation 
that Deputy Sims violated Holmes County Sheriffs Office Standard Operating Procedure 1.4 #2 which reads, 
"Personnel shall conduct themselves iirall times, both on and off duty, in such a manner as to reflect most 

favorably on the department. Conduct unbecoming Sheriffs personnel shall include that which tends to 
bring the Department into disrepute or reflects discredit upon the person as a member of the Departfnent or 
that, which tends to impair the operation or efficiency of the Department or personnel Employees sHall at all 
times conduct themselves in such a manner as to reflect a favorable image on themselves and the Ho1mes 
County Sheriffs Department. " is sustained. I 

I 
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AFFIRMATION: 

I, the undersigned, do hereby swear, under penalty of perjury, that, to the best of my 
personal knowledge, information, and belief, I have not knowingly or willfully deprived, or 
allowed another to deprive, the subject of the investigation of any of the rights contained ih 
F.S. 112.532 and 112.533, Florida Statutes. 

The contents of this report are true and accurate based on my personal knowledge, 
information and belief. 

Printed name of investigator/detective 

Sworn and subscribed to pursuant to F.S. 92.525 

01~ This-~.....,_ ____ day of 0~:.~;i!•·~~~ JEANA C PRE~COTT 
~~.- :.:} MY COMMISSION #jFF220509 

'•J.toi. .. ,. EXPIRES Aprit 14. 2019 ,,. ... 
1401) 3fJ8.0·~3 FlorldaNowyScr.i<:o.coir 

850-547-4421 -PHONE 850-547-2290 -FAX 




